
State of Alaska 
Department of Commerce, Community & 

Economic Development Division of Corporations, 
Business, and Professional Licensing 

Big Game Commercial Services Board 

%RDUG3DFNHW 

)HEUXDU\ 

7KLVLVD'UDIW'RFXPHQW 





Big Game Commercial Services Board - AO 360 Meeting 
Alaska Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇϭϬ͕ϮϬϮϲĂƚϵ͗ϬϬථD<^dƚŽdƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇϭϬ͕ϮϬϮϲĂƚ 
ϱ͗ϬϬථWD<^d 
Zoom (online) 

Meeting Details: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82659804079 

Agenda 

1. 9:00am - Roll call/Call to Order 
2. 9:02am - Review Agenda 
3. 9:03am - Ethics Review 
4. 9:05am - Meeting Minutes: December 10, 2025 
5. 9:10am - AO 360: Review and Approval of Board Plan
6. 12:00pm - Lunch 
7. 1:00pm - AO 360: Review and Approval of Board Plan (continued) 
8. 3:30pm - Probation Report 
9. 3:35pm - Investigative Report
10. 3:40pm - Investigative Matters for Review (if time allows) 

A. Executive Session
i. Case No. 2023-001192
ii. Case No. 2025-001032
iii. Case No. 2025-000617
iv. Case No. 2025-000383 
v. Case No. 2024-001018 & Case No. 2025-001006 

11. 4:30pm - Summary/Motions from Executive Session (if time allows) 
12. 5:00pm - Adjourn 

DRAFTBoard Pland Plan 

oval of Board Plan (conf Board Plan (con

ortort 
e Matters for Review (Matters for Review (

onon 
023023--001192 

55--001032 001
0061700617 



State of Alaska 

DEPARTMENT OF LAW 

ETHICS ACT PROCEDURES FOR BOARDS & 
COMMISSIONS 
All board and commission members and staff should be familiar with the Executive Branch Ethics 
Act procedures outlined below. 

Who Is My Designated Ethics Supervisor (DES)? 
Every board or commission subject to the Ethics Act1 has several ethics supervisors designated by 
statute. 

• The chair serves as DES for board or commission members. 

• The chair serves as DES for the executive director. 

• The executive director serves as DES for the staff. 

• The governor is the DES for a chair.2 

What Do I Have To Disclose? 
The Ethics Act requires members of boards and commissions to disclose: 

• Any matter that is a potential conflict of interest with actions that the member may take when 
serving on the board or commission. 

• Any circumstance that may result in a violation of the Ethics Act. 

• Any personal or financial interest (or that of an immediate family member) in a state grant, 
contract, lease or loan that is awarded or administered by the member's board or commission. 

• The receipt of certain gifts. 

The executive director of the board or commission and its staff, as state employees, must also 
disclose: 

• Compensated outside employment or services. 

• Volunteer service, if any compensation, including travel and meals, is paid or there is a potential 
conflict with state duties. 

Page 1 of 7 Ethics Act Procedures for Boards & Commissions - Alaska Department of Law 

3/14/2018 http://www.law.alaska.gov/doclibrary/ethics/EthicsBC.html 



• For more information regarding the types of matters that may result in violations of the Ethics 
Act, board or commission members should refer to the guide, “Ethics Information for Members of 
Boards and Commissions.” The executive director and staff should refer to the guide, Ethics 
Information for Public Employees.” Both guides and disclosure forms may be found on the 
Department of Law’s ethics website. 

How Do I Avoid Violations of the Ethics Act? 
• Make timely disclosures! 

• Follow required procedures! 

• Provide all information necessary to a correct evaluation of the matter!3 

• When in doubt, disclose and seek advice! 

• Follow the advice of your DES! 

What Are The Disclosure Procedures for Board and 
Commission Members? 
The procedural requirements for disclosures by members are set out in AS 39.52.220 and 9 AAC 
52.120. One goal of these provisions is to help members avoid violations of the Ethics Act. The 
procedures provide the opportunity for members to seek review of matters in advance of taking 
action to ensure that actions taken will be consistent with the Act. 

Procedure for declaring actual or potential conflicts. 
Members must declare potential conflicts and other matters that may violate the Ethics Act on 
the public record and in writing to the chair. 

Disclosure on the public record. Members must identify actual and potential conflicts orally at the 
board or commission's public meeting in advance of participating in deliberations or taking any 
official action on the matter. 

• A member must always declare a conflict and may choose to refrain from voting, deliberations or 
other participation regarding a matter.4 

• If a member is uncertain whether participation would result in a violation of the Act, the member 
should disclose the circumstances and seek a determination from the chair. 

Disclosure in writing at a public meeting. In addition to an oral disclosure at a board or commission 
meeting, members’ disclosures must be made in writing. 

Page 2 of 7 Ethics Act Procedures for Boards & Commissions - Alaska Department of Law 

3/14/2018 http://www.law.alaska.gov/doclibrary/ethics/EthicsBC.html 



• If the meeting is recorded, a tape or transcript of the meeting is preserved and there is a method 
for identifying the declaration in the record, an oral disclosure may serve as the written 
disclosure. 

• Alternatively, the member must note the disclosure on the Notice of Potential Violation 
disclosure form and the chair must record the determination. 

Confidential disclosure in advance of public meeting. Potential conflicts may be partially addressed 
in advance of a board or commission's public meeting based on the published meeting agenda or 
other board or commission activity. 

• A member identifying a conflict or potential conflict submits a Notice of Potential Violation to the 
chair, as DES, in advance of the public meeting. 

• This written disclosure is considered confidential. 

• The chair may seek advice from the Attorney General. 

• The chair makes a written determination, also confidential, whether the disclosed matter 
represents a conflict that will result in a violation of the Ethics Act if the member participates in 
official action addressing the matter. 5 

• If so, the chair directs the member to refrain from participating in the matter that is the subject of 
the disclosure. 

• An oral report of the notice of potential violation and the determination that the member must 
refrain from participating is put on the record at a public meeting.6 

Determinations at the public meeting. When a potential conflict is declared by a member for the 
public record, the following procedure must be followed: 

• The chair states his or her determination regarding whether the member may participate. 

• Any member may then object to the chair's determination. 

• If an objection is made, the members present, excluding the member who made the disclosure, 
vote on the matter. 

• Exception: A chair's determination that is made consistent with advice provided by the Attorney 
General may not be overruled. 

• If the chair, or the members by majority vote, determines that a violation will exist if the 
disclosing member continues to participate, the member must refrain from voting, deliberating 
or participating in the matter.7 

If the chair identifies a potential conflict, the same procedures are followed. If possible, the chair 
should forward a confidential written notice of potential violation to the Office of the Governor 
for a determination in advance of the board or commission meeting. If the declaration is first 

Page 3 of 7 Ethics Act Procedures for Boards & Commissions - Alaska Department of Law 

3/14/2018 http://www.law.alaska.gov/doclibrary/ethics/EthicsBC.html 



made at the public meeting during which the matter will be addressed, the members present, 
except for the chair, vote on the matter. If a majority determines that a violation of the Ethics Act 
will occur if the chair continues to participate, the chair shall refrain from voting, deliberating or 
participating in the matter. A written disclosure or copy of the public record regarding the oral 
disclosure should be forwarded to the Office of the Governor for review by the chair's DES. 

Procedures for Other Member Disclosures 
A member's interest in a state grant, contract, lease or loan and receipt of gifts are disclosed by 
filling out the appropriate disclosure form and submitting the form to the chair for approval. The 
disclosure forms are found on the Department of Law's ethics website. 

What Are The Disclosure Procedures for Executive 
Directors and Staff? 
Ethics disclosures of the executive director or staff are made in writing to the appropriate DES 
(chair for the executive director and the executive director for staff). 

• Disclosure forms are found on the ethics website, noted above. 

Notices of Potential Violations. Following receipt of a written notice of potential violation, the DES 
investigates, if necessary, and makes a written determination whether a violation of the Ethics Act 
could exist or will occur. A DES may seek advice from the Attorney General. If feasible, the DES 
shall reassign duties to cure a potential violation or direct divestiture or removal by the employee 
of the personal or financial interests giving rise to the potential violation. 

• These disclosures are not required to be made part of the public record. 

• A copy of a determination is provided to the employee. 

• Both the notice and determination are confidential. 

Other Disclosures. The DES also reviews other ethics disclosures and either approves them or 
determines what action must be taken to avoid a violation of the Act. In addition to the 
disclosures of certain gifts and interests in the listed state matters, state employees must disclose 
all outside employment or services for compensation. 

• The DES must provide a copy of an approved disclosure or other determination the employee. 

How Are Third Party Reports of Potential Violations or 
Complaints Handled? 

Page 4 of 7 Ethics Act Procedures for Boards & Commissions - Alaska Department of Law 

3/14/2018 http://www.law.alaska.gov/doclibrary/ethics/EthicsBC.html 



Any person may report a potential violation of the Ethics Act by a board or commission member 
or its staff to the appropriate DES or file a complaint alleging actual violations with the Attorney 
General. 

• Notices of potential violations and complaints must be submitted in writing and under oath. 

• Notices of potential violations are investigated by the appropriate DES who makes a written 
determination whether a violation may exist.8 

• Complaints are addressed by the Attorney General under separate procedures outlined in the 
Ethics Act. 

• These matters are confidential, unless the subject waives confidentiality or the matter results in 
a public accusation. 

What Are The Procedures for Quarterly Reports? 
Designated ethics supervisors must submit copies of notices of potential violations received and 
the corresponding determinations to the Attorney General for review by the state ethics attorney 
as part of the quarterly report required by the Ethics Act. 

• Reports are due in April, July, October and January for the preceding quarter. 

• A sample report may be found on the Department of Law's ethics website. 

• An executive director may file a quarterly report on behalf of the chair and combine it with his or 
her own report. 

• If a board or commission does not meet during a quarter and there is no other reportable 
activity, the DES advises the Department of Law Ethics Attorney by e-mail at 
ethicsreporting@alaska.gov and no other report is required. 

If the state ethics attorney disagrees with a reported determination, the attorney will advise the 
DES of that finding. If the ethics attorney finds that there was a violation, the member who 
committed the violation is not liable if he or she fully disclosed all relevant facts reasonably 
necessary to the ethics supervisor's or commission's determination and acted consistent with the 
determination. 

How Does A DES or Board or Commission Get Ethics 
Advice? 
A DES or board or commission may make a written request to the Attorney General for an 
opinion regarding the application of the Ethics Act. In practice, the Attorney General, through the 
state ethics attorney, also provides advice by phone or e-mail to designated ethics supervisors, 
especially when time constraints prevent the preparation of timely written opinions. 

Page 5 of 7 Ethics Act Procedures for Boards & Commissions - Alaska Department of Law 

3/14/2018 http://www.law.alaska.gov/doclibrary/ethics/EthicsBC.html 



• A request for advice and the advisory opinion are confidential. 

• The ethics attorney endeavors to provide prompt assistance, although that may not always be 
possible. 

• The DES must make his or her determination addressing the potential violation based on the 
opinion provided. 

It is the obligation of each board or commission member, as well as the staff, to ensure that the 
public's business is conducted in a manner that is consistent with the standards set out in the 
Ethics Act. We hope this summary assists you in ensuring that your obligations are met. 

1 The Act covers a board, commission, authority, or board of directors of a public or quasi-public 
corporation, established by statute in the executive branch of state government. 

2 The governor has delegated the DES responsibility to Guy Bell, Administrative Director of the 
Office of the Governor. 

3 You may supplement the disclosure form with other written explanation as necessary. Your 
signature on a disclosure certifies that, to the best of your knowledge, the statements made are 
true, correct and complete. False statements are punishable. 

4 In most, but not all, situations, refraining from participation ensures that a violation of the Ethics 
Act does not occur. Abstention does not cure a conflict with respect to a significant direct 
personal or financial interest in a state grant, contract, lease or loan because the Ethics Act 
prohibition applies whether or not the public officer actually takes official action. 

5 The chair must give a copy of the written determination to the disclosing member. There is a 
determination form available on the Department of Law's ethics web page. The ethics supervisor 
may also write a separate memorandum. 

6 In this manner, a member's detailed personal and financial information may be protected from 
public disclosure. 

7 When a matter of particular sensitivity is raised and the ramifications of continuing without an 
advisory opinion from the Attorney General may affect the validity of the board or commission's 
action, the members should consider tabling the matter so that an opinion may be obtained. 

8 The DES provides a copy of the notice to the employee who is the subject of the notice and may 
seek input from the employee, his or her supervisor and others. The DES may seek advice from 
the Attorney General. A copy of the DES' written determination is provided to the subject 
employee and the complaining party. The DES submits a copy of both the notice and the 
determination to the Attorney General for review as part of the DES' quarterly report. If feasible, 

Page 6 of 7 Ethics Act Procedures for Boards & Commissions - Alaska Department of Law 

3/14/2018 http://www.law.alaska.gov/doclibrary/ethics/EthicsBC.html 



Alaska Department of Law 

1031 West 4th Avenue, Suite 200 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

attorney.general@alaska.gov 
Phone: (907) 269-5100 | Fax: (907) 276-3697 

TTY: 907-258-9161 

the DES shall reassign duties to cure a potential violation or direct divestiture or removal by the 
employee of the personal or financial interests giving rise to the potential violation. 

6/14 

The Attorney General and Department of Law staff may not provide legal advice to private citizens or organizations. 
Please contact an attorney if you need legal advice. The Alaska Lawyer Referral Service or your local bar association 

may be able to assist you in locating a lawyer. 

COPYRIGHT © STATE OF ALASKA · DEPARTMENT OF LAW · EMAIL THE WEBMASTER 

Page 7 of 7 Ethics Act Procedures for Boards & Commissions - Alaska Department of Law 

3/14/2018 http://www.law.alaska.gov/doclibrary/ethics/EthicsBC.html 



Ethics Disclosure Form 

CONFIDENTIAL 
REQUEST FOR ETHICS DETERMINATION 

TO: , Designated Ethics Supervisor 

(Identify Your Department, Agency, Public Corporation, Board, Commission) 

I request advice regarding the application of the Executive Branch Ethics Act (AS 39.52.010 
- .960) to my situation.  The situation involves the following: 

I have provided additional information in the attached document(s). 

I believe the following provisions of the Ethics Act may apply to my situation: 
AS 39.52.120, Misuse of Official Position 
AS 39.52.130, Improper Gifts 
AS 39.52.140, Improper Use or Disclosure of Information 
AS 39.52.150, Improper Influence in State Grants, Contracts, Leases or Loans 
AS 39.52.160, Improper Representation 
AS 39.52.170, Outside Employment Restricted 
AS 39.52.180, Restrictions on Employment after Leaving State Service 
AS 39.52.190, Aiding a Violation Prohibited 

I understand that I should refrain from taking any official action relating to this matter 
until I receive your advice.  If the circumstances I described above may result in a violation of 
AS 39.52.110 - .190, I intend that this request serve as my disclosure of the matter in accordance 
with AS 39.52.210 or AS 39.52.220. 

I certify to the best of my knowledge that my statement is true, correct, and complete.  In 
addition to any other penalty or punishment that may apply, the submission of a false statement 
is punishable under AS 11.56.200 - AS 11.56.240. 

(Signature) (Date) 

(Printed Name) (Division, Board, Commission) 

(Position Title) (Location) 

Designated Ethics Supervisor:  Provide a copy of your written determination to the employee advising 
whether action is necessary under AS 39.52.210 or AS 39.52.220, and send a copy of the determination 
and disclosure to the attorney general with your quarterly report. 

Revised 2012 



Ethics Disclosure Form 
Receipt of Gift 

TO: , Designated Ethics Supervisor, 
(Agency, Public Corporation, Board, 

Commission or Council) 
This disclosure reports receipt of a gift with value in excess of $150.00 by me or my immediate family 
member, as required by AS 39.52.130(b) or (f). 

1. Is the gift connected to my position as a state officer, employee or member of a state board or commission? 

Yes No 

2. Can I take or withhold official action that may affect the person or entity that gave me the gift? 

Yes No 

(If you answer “No” to both questions, you do not need to report this gift.  If the answer to either question is “Yes,” 
or if you are not sure, you must complete this form and provide it to your designated ethics supervisor.) 

The gift is 

Identify gift giver by full name, title, and organization or relationship, if any: 

Describe event or occasion when gift was received or other circumstance explaining the reason for the gift: 

My estimate of its value is $ The date of receipt was 

The gift was received by a member of my family. Who? 

If you checked “Yes” to question 2 above, explain the official action you may take that affects the giver (attach 
additional page, if necessary): 

I certify to the best of my knowledge that my statement is true, correct, and complete.  In addition to any other 
penalty or punishment that may apply, the submission of a false statement is punishable under AS 11.56.200  - 
AS 11.56.240. 

(Signature) (Date) 

(Printed Name) (Division) 

(Position Title) (Location) 
Ethics Supervisor Determination: Approve Disapproved

Designated Ethics Supervisor* (Date) 

*Designated Ethics Supervisor: Provide a copy of the approval or disapproval to the employee.  If action is necessary 
under AS 39.52.210 or AS 39.52.220, attach a determination stating the reasons and send a copy of the determination 
and disclosure to the attorney general with your quarterly report. 

Revised 2012 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

BIG GAME COMMERCIAL SERVICES BOARD 
CONDENSED MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD DECEMBER 10, 2025 

These draft minutes were prepared by staff of the Division of Corporations, 
Business and Professional Licensing. They have not been reviewed or approved 

by the Board. 

By authority of AS 08.01.070(2) and in compliance with the provision of AS 44.62, 
Article 6, a scheduled meeting (teleconference) of the Big Game Commercial Services Board was held on 

December 10, 2025, at 550 W. 7th Ave, 1st Floor, Anchorage, AK. 

Date: December 10, 2025 

Time: 9:00 a.m. (9:05 a.m.) 

Location: Online teleconference ran from the Robert Atwood Building: 550 W. 7th Ave, 1st Floor, Anchorage, AK

Board 
Members 
Present: 

Aaron Bloomquist, Keegan McCarthy, Martin Boniek, Mike Flores, Dave Lorring, Larry Kunder, Brianna Hauch, 
Robert Mumford 

Board 
Members 
Absent: 

Clay Nordlum 

Division/SOA 
Staff Present: 

Thomas Bay (Executive Administrator), Janet Brown (Occupational Licensing Examiner), Sylvan Robb (Director), 
Lee Strout (Investigator), Jenni Summers (Senior Investigator)

Present from 
the Public: 

Hank Flatow, Dan Valentine, Jake Fletcher, Steve Perrins, Steve Perrins II, Derrick Campbell, Arrow Outfitters, 
John Martinez, Jordan Whatley, Michael Zweng, Cash Joyce, Dan Montgomery, James Smith, Mark Richards, 
Ralph Arnold, Jay Stanford, Lyle Becker, Spencer Pape, Loren Karro, Will Koehler, Bill Kaltschnee, Cabot Pitts, 
Peter Barela 

1. Review Agenda 
Brief Discussion: Mr. Bay informed the board that there were two additional investigative matters for 

review that were not on the agenda. The board amended the agenda to add consent 
agreements #2025-001034 and #2025-001048 under Investigative Matters for Review on 
the agenda. 

Motion: Move to amend the agenda by adding consent agreements #2025-001034 and #2025-
001048 under Investigative Matters for Review on the agenda. (First: Kunder; Second: 
Flores). 

Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

DDRAstrator), strato Janet Brown (Occunet Brown (O 
nni Summers (ni Summers (Senior Senior InvestInvest RAFTT T 

uilding: 550 W. 7th Ave, 1stuilding: 550 W. 7th Ave, 1st FT 
niek, Mike Flores, ike Flore Dave Lor FT 
AF 

RA 
ne, Jake Fletcher, Steve Peke Fletcher, Steve Pe

 Whatley, Michael Zweng,  Whatley, Michael 
tanford, Lyle Becker, Stanford, Lyle Becker, Spenc pe R 
D D D 



Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes 

2. Ethics Review 
Brief Discussion: There were no ethical disclosures by any board members or staff. 

3. Meeting Minutes 
Brief Discussion: There was no discussion to amend the meeting minutes. 
Motion: Move to approve the meeting minutes for October 1st, 2025, as written (First: McCarthy; 

Second: Kunder). 
Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes

Mumford - Yes 

4. Division Update 
Brief Discussion: The board welcomed Director Sylvan Robb to the meeting, who was in attendance to 

provide the board’s  Division Update.

Prov 
Brief Discussion: Director Robb started a discussion regarding Prov, a vendor for online testing that the 

division already uses for other boarded programs, and a possible vendor for the board to 
use to provide examinations online instead of in-person. She informed the board that 
there is no cost for Prov to set up exams for administration, that the division would 
approve candidates to take the exam and the information they would need to register with 
Prov. She said the exams are in the neighborhood of $75-$90, and that Prov would invoice 
the division monthly for those who took exams. Mr. McCarthy asked if the prices would be 
the same for GMU exams and RGO exams, to which Chairman Bloomquist said that the 
board is only looking to do GMU exams online at the moment because there was still work 
to get the RGO exams online. Director Robb also informed the board that the GMU exams 
would be available year-round, instead of only twice a year, which is what the board was 
looking to do. 

Current Fiscal Report: FY25 3rd/4th Quarters & FY 26 1st Quarter 
Brief Discussion: Director Robb provided the board with their FY25 3rd/4th quarter fiscal reports, which came 

to a deficit for the fiscal year but ultimately came to an overall cumulative surplus. She 
reminded the board that their renewals at the end of 2025 would likely add a substantial 
surplus because of renewal licensing fees. She also provided the board with their FY26 1st 

quarter fiscal report, which was right on track with their expected revenues/expenditures, 
and again came to a small deficit but ultimately came to an overall cumulative surplus. 

AO 360: Discussion w/ Director Robb 

DRAobb started a discussion regobb started a discuss 
 already uses for other boa already uses for other b 

to provide examinations onrovide examinations on
here is no cost for Prohere is no cost f v to 

approve candidates to t approve candidates t 
Prov. She said the exsaid the ex 
the division montthe division m DRAFirector Sylvan Robb to the irector Sylvan Robb FTTT TT Lor

T T 
FT 
FT 
FTFT Hauc TTT 
FT 
FTFT 
FTFT 
FTFTFT 
FT

AFT
AFT 
FT 
FTFT 

Division Update. vision Update AF 
RAF
RA AF 

he same for he same for 
rd is ord is o 

RA 
D 



Brief Discussion: Director Robb provided an overview of Administrative Order 360, which was issued by 
Governor Mike Dunleavy on August 4th, 2025, to improve the quality, transparency, and 
efficiency of the state’s regulatory environment. She said that all state entities in state 
government were charged to engage with the regulatory reform. She said that one of the 
requirements was stakeholder engagement. She said that the division held 16 hours of 
public meetings to gather input as well as the opportunity for written comment. She 
informed the board that they only received one written comment, which was from 
Chairman Bloomquist and was not specific to any regulation, but more the regulations 
process and allowing the board to move forward with their regulation projects. She 
informed the board that AO 360 requires all departments to have a plan in place by 
February 13th to reduce current regulations by 15% by the end of 2026 and 25% by the 
end of 2027. She informed the board that the reduction comes down to removing 
discretionary regulatory requirements that the board has adopted and does not apply to 
regulations that are mandates by state statutes, federal statutes or regulations, or orders 
issued by state or federal courts. She said that Mr. Bay has a baseline number that the 
board needs to get down to, which is included in a spreadsheet with specific regulations 
and how many discretionary requirements are included in each regulation. She said that 
partial credit is available for reducing regulatory burdens as well, such as reducing the 
number of training hours required for licensure. She informed the board that the deadline 
to have a plan in place is February 13, 2026. She informed them that they need to have a 
board approved spreadsheet that includes all of their reductions, and any regulation 
projects that they may have been working on, to the division by that date. The division will 
then send it to the Department of Law for review. If approved, all plans on the spreadsheet 
will move forward through the normal regulations process. Mr. Kunder said that it sounds 
like the board is creating more work for administration, with the board paying for their 
services, while not getting anything accomplished, such as their regulations project that 
was paused at the Department of Law. Chairman Bloomquist asked Director Robb who 
created the spreadsheet with the discretionary requirements, to which she said a small 
group within the division had. He asked her if that same small group could work on their 
regulation projects, so they do not take years to get through the regulations process. She 
said that the normal process for a regulations project is six months to a year and that the 
process is by design, so that new board members cannot come in and keep changing the 
regulations. She said that a much shorter process would not allow licensees to keep up 
with the rules they have to follow. She said that the Big Game Commercial Services Board 
sometimes takes longer because of the industry and that board members are in the field 
for a good amount of time throughout the year, which may slow down the process 
because the board cannot meet at certain times to move on to the next step in the 
regulations process. Chairman Bloomquist disagreed that a regulations project takes six 
months to a year, stated that it was a false statement, and criticized the process because 
the board has regulations that have been in the works for three to five years. He said that 
he would love to go through and remove discretionary requirements in regulation and 
asked if the changes regarding AO 360 would take just as long, to which Director Robb said 
that the goal is to follow the board’s plan that gets approved at the Department of Law, 
and that it would follow the same regulations process. Mr. Kunder asked what happens if 
they do not have a plan by the February 13th deadline, to which Director Robb said that if 
the board is diligently working on the plan and realize they cannot make the deadline, they 

DRAFT , fede, fed 
hat Mr. Bay hat Mr 

luded in a spreadshluded in a s 
ments are included in eac ments are included 

cing regulatory burdens ascing regulatory burdens a 
uired for licensure. She infored for licensure. She info 

ebruary 13, 2026. She y 13, 202 infor 
dsdsheet he that includes all of thclude 

may  have been working on, have been working on 
he Department of Law for r rtment of Law for 

rward through the normal r rward through the n 
oard is creating more work oard is creating more w 

es, while not getting anyths, while not getting anyth 
as paused at the Departmeed at the Departme 

created the spreadsheetcreated the spread 
group within the divisigroup within the divis 
regulation r projects pro
said that the nosaid that the n 

ocess is bocess is b Datioatio D 



can ask for an extension. He asked if AO 360 keeps the board from working on regulation 
projects, to which she said that any work on regulation projects would require a waiver. 
Chairman Bloomquist said that while he would like to work on AO 360, he did not think it 
was going to go anywhere anytime soon. He said that the board could work on the project, 
but that he would not be on the board much longer and that he had no intention of 
working on it. Mr. Bay reminded the board that the reason their large project that was 
paused at the Department of Law took so long to get there was because the board kept 
taking public comment during board meetings and changing or adding to the regulations. 
Every time a change is made the regulations have to go back to the regulations specialist 
for drafting and then back to the board for approval, which delays the process. Chairman 
Bloomquist said that was not entirely true because there were regulations in that project 
that had not been touched in years. He said that the board has always been told that they 
should combine their regulation projects to reduce the costs of their regulation projects 
and asked Director Robb if smaller regulation projects would move the process along 
quicker, to which she said that while larger  regulation projects are good for licensees and 
the public, because all of the changes are in one place, smaller projects would likely move 
the process along quicker. Mr. Lorring asked if their regulations project that was paused 
with the Department of Law was dead in the water, to which Director Robb said that they
would need to add it to their spreadsheet to get it approved. If approved, it would 
continue through the regular regulations process. Mr. Bay asked Director Robb how other 
boards were working on AO 360, to which she said that multiple boards had created 
workgroups with the intent of meeting up as a whole board until they had a plan, while 
some boards were working on their own and meeting as a whole board until they had a 
plan. She said that the board can work on their plan at their own discretion and would 
need to make that decision at this meeting. Mr. Mumford said that he had been on the 
board in the past and that it has always taken a long time for regulations projects, but that 
they work at the pleasure of the governor and that they need to be patient because that is 
the nature of the board. With nothing left, the board thanked Director Robb for her time. 

5. BOG Update 
Brief Discussion: Mr. Lorring, the Board of Game (BOG) representative on the board, provided the board 

with an update. He said that the next BOG meeting would be in Wrangell, with a work 
session on January 22nd, 2026, and a board meeting January 23rd-27th, 2026. He said the 
next meeting would be in Kodiak, March 20th-25th, 2026. He said that comments on 
proposals for the Wrangell meeting are due by January 9th and the comments on proposals 
for the Kodiak meeting are due by March 6th. He said that they received a complaint 
regarding websites not being updated with the new BOG requirements regarding 
mountain goat hunters and non-resident moose hunters. Mr. Bay said that the board had 
already discussed this and it was on their website in September 2025. Mr. Lorring said that 
the BGCSB agenda change request regarding 19C being the pilot program for the Guide 
Concession Program and that he was conflicted out of participating in the discussion/vote 
and it was denied. Mr. Boniek said that he was at the BOG meeting and it was his opinion 
that it felt like nobody wanted to deal with the GCP and that it did not receive the merit it 
should have. He asked when the next time the discussion could come up, to which Mr. 
Lorring said it would likely be January 2027. Chairman Bloomquist suggested that the BOG 
member on the board should be recused from discussions on the pilot program so that 

DRAFT
rojectrojec 

regulation prregula
e in one place, sma e in one pla 

g asked if their regulationg asked if their reg
dede ad in the water, to whichad in the water, to whi 

spreadsheet to get it appropreadsheet to get it appro 
lar regulations process. Mrulations p 

n AO 360n AO , to which she said which 
e intent of meeting up as atent of meeting up as 

ere working on their own an ng on their own a
d that the board can work o d that the board can 

make that decision at this mmake that decision at t
 in the past and that it has n the past and that it has

ey work at the pleask at the p ure  of tre of t
the nature of the board. Wthe nature of the b

DDRDRD DDR 
Mr. Lorring, the BMr. Lorring, th 
with an updatwith an upda 

ion onion on DDDD 



Off Record: 10:32 a.m. 

person does not get conflicted out of discussion at BOG meetings. With nothing left to 
discuss, the board took a break. 

6. Public Comment 
Brief Discussion: 
On Record: 10:40 a.m. 

The board began public comment. 

Dan Montgomery Dan Montgomery, an MGO, said that the board was not enforcing the UVC code 
requirement that a licensee be registered in a GUA the year they apply a hunter in the 
ADF&G permit drawing and the year the permit is valid for. He said that people are illegally 
getting permits because of this. He asked if the board was going to do anything about it, to 
which Chairman Bloomquist said that he thought the issue had already been dealt with, 
and asked what Mr. Montgomery would do. Mr. Montgomery said that the board should 
pull any issued permits to invalid UVC codes being used. Chairman Bloomquist said that 
the board does not have authority to pull permits and that only ADF&G does. Mr. 
Montgomery said that staff receives a spreadsheet from ADF&G to confirm UVC codes for 
winning permits and that they can inform ADF&G of bad UVC codes, at which time the 
permits can be pulled. Mr. Kunder asked if the board could assess a fine or sanction 
licensees that use bad UVC codes, to which Chairman Bloomquist said he thinks they 
should. Mr. Bay said that this discussion had already happened at a previous board 
meeting. He said that the regulation is going to have to be amended because the 
regulation, 12 AAC 75.260(d), states, “Unique verification codes will be current until the 
associated guide use area registration expires or is withdrawn or amended,” which is why 
he had been  telling RGOs that they can use their previous codes as long as their 
registration had not expired. He reminded the board that one of their intended regulation 
projects included fixing this problem. Chairman Bloomquist said that the original intent of 
the regulation was to only use a UVC code if an RGO was registered in the year of the 
permit application deadline and the year the permit is good for, and that they should move 
forward that way. Mr. Bay said that any applications showing up this year that were on the 
tail end of a registration were being told to reregister, so the issue shouldn’t affect too 
many people moving forward. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. 
Montgomery for his time. 

Mark Richards Mark Richards, Executive Director of the Resident Hunters of Alaska (RHAK), said that he 
thought there was a lot of confusion at the BOG ACR meeting. He said that RHAK had 
opposed ACR 2 because it did not comply with the statute that a GCP proposal must be 
heard in the region where it would be implemented. He said that AAG Kimberly said there 
was uncodified language in what was SB189 that became SB97, and that the board did not 
have to consider a GCP in the region where it would be implemented. He said there was a 
lot of confusion on whether the program was funded based on the fiscal note that was in 
SB97. He said that SB97 allows a guide to have three guide concession areas and three 
federal areas and that the board should look into it. He said that he talked with DNR and 
that only one person was going to be working with the first GCP project, that there was a 
hiring freeze, and that it would be three to five years before anything was implemented. 
He added that because there is no pilot program in 19C, after the BOG denied 
implementation of ACR 2, the BOG will probably receive multiple GCP proposals for 
problem areas of the interior for the May 1st deadline for the 2027 interior region 

DRicRic DRAFT
ing using u 

ermits and th ermits
preadsheet from AD preadsheet 

form ADF&G of bad UVC cform ADF&G of ba 
r asked if the  board could a r asked if the board could 

des, to which Chairman Blodes, to which Chairman Blo 
his discussion had already h cussion ha 

he regulation is going to hahe regulation is goi 
75.260(d)260(d), states, “, states Uniquenique 

e use area registration expia registration exp
telling RGOs that they can telling RGOs that th

on had not expired. He rem on had not expired. He 
cts included fixing ts included fixing this probhis prob 

e regulation was to only usation was to only us 
permit application deadlinpermit application 
forward that forward that way. Mr.way. Mr 
tail end of a registrtail end of a re 
many people mmany people m 

ontgoontgomermer DD D 



proposals. He said that the first approved GCP has to be implemented for at least three 
years before any other GCPs could be created and was not sure how the BGCSB wanted 
the BOG to deal with it. He said that he continues to be amazed that the BGCSB cannot 
prevent someone with felonies to receive a license. Chairman Bloomquist said that he 
agreed with him but that their attorneys have told the board that they have to issue the 
licenses. Mr. Kunder assured Mr. Richards that the board has discussed this issue for 
multiple hours and only issued the licenses after direction from the Department of Law. 
Mr. Richards informed the board that he had been receiving a lot of phone calls about 
airboats dropping hunters off on rivers and congesting the area to the point that there 
were camps right next to each other. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. 
Richards for his time. 

Steve Perrins II Mr. Perrins II, an MGO, said that he was under the impression that RGOs are supposed to 
use their UVC codes to put their clients in the drawing and not hand them out to clients so 
that they can put themselves in the drawing. He asked if it was possible for the applications 
to be reviewed prior to being drawn, so they can assure that everyone in the drawing is 
legal and that there are no legal issues later on down the road between clients being 
drawn and RGOs not having an authorized UVC code. He also said that felons are not 
legally allowed to be in the field so they should not be able to hold a license and that the 
board should challenge it in court. Mr. Bay informed him that ADF&G does not have a 
system set up that prevents unauthorized UVC codes at the time of application and that he 
reviews a spreadsheet  of winning permit holders to confirm or deny the UVC codes. He 
said that he spoke with them about possibly getting a system setup that would prevent 
unauthorized UVC codes at the time of application but was not sure if it was implemented 
for the 2025 draw application deadline. He also said that the board had previously 
discussed UVC codes being provided to clients and that the board’s advice was for RGOs to 
put their own clients in the drawings and at the end of the day they were responsible for 
usage of those codes. The board agreed with Mr. Perrins II that a person with a felony is 
not legally allowed to be in the field with a client but that the Department of Law has sided 
with applicants in the past, as long as they do not fall under the eligibility circumstances in 
AS 08.54.605. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Perrins II for his time. 

Coke Wallace Coke Wallace, an MGO, said that the UVC code system should be simplified and that if the 
board is not going to enforce it that they should just get rid of it. He said that if the GCP is 
not created and used soon it is not going to matter because of the decline of resources in 
the field. He said the resource are suffering and nobody is doing anything about it. He said 
that ADF&G should have the courage and fortitude to tell the BGCSB and BOG that the 
resources are suffering and that things need to slow down. He asked Mr. Mumford and Mr. 
Lorring, both previous wildlife troopers, what their interpretations were regarding the 
limits and capabilities of a helicopter in support of a commercial hunting operation. Mr. 
Mumford’s interpretation was that a helicopter should not be used in any manner in 
support of a commercial hunting operation. Mr. Lorring said that a big theme of the recent 
APHA meeting was to get to know your local wildlife trooper and suggested that he reach 
out to one of them because he had retired as a wildlife trooper for a long time. AWT 
Trooper Dan Valentine was in attendance at the meeting. The board welcomed him into 
the conversation. He said that AWT tried to get the BOG to define ‘gear’ to deal with these 
types of issues, but they decided against it. He said that the biggest hangup the 
Department of Law has is being able to differentiate whether or not the gear being 

DRAFT
e askee ask 

y can assure y can 
ater on down the roater on dow

orized UVC code. He also s orized UVC code. H 
o they should not be able t o they should not be able 

ourt. Mr. Bay informed himurt. Mr. Bay informed him 
ts unauthorized UVC codes uthorized 

of winning permit holders t of winning permit h
with them about possibly gethem about possibly 

VC codes at the time of appat the time of ap 
draw application deadline.draw application de 

d UVC codes being provided d UVC codes being prov 
heir own clients in the draweir own clients in the draw 

age of those codes. The bohose codes. The bo 
not legally allowed to be i not legally allowed 
with applicants in the with applicants in the 
AS 08.54.605AS 08.54.605. With. D 
Coke Wallace, aCoke Wallace, 

ard is notard is not 
eaea DDDD 



transported by a helicopter is for hunting or lodging, even though people were being 
lodged to go hunting. Without a clear definition of ‘gear,’ he said that it is very difficult to 
charge people for using a helicopter. Mr. Kunder said that if the sole purpose of the cabin 
is to go hunting then it is clear that it is a violation. Mr. Perrins II said that the board should 
be able to use the professional ethics standards for guides regulations to prosecute people 
who use helicopters for hunting purposes. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked 
Mr. Wallace for his time. 

Cash Joyce Cash Joyce, an RGO, said that Article 8, sections 1-3, of the Alaska Constitution, include 
Statement of Policy, General Authority, and Common Use is all based on maximum yield. 
Section 4 is Sustained Yield, which establishes the mandate for natural resource 
management based on the sustained yield principle. He said that with the increasing 
demand for game sustained yield should be just as important as maximum yield or the 
state is going to have a major problem with wildlife moving forward. Lastly, he said that 
there was a registered guide-outfitter who went onto private land, used the private strip 
and a private cabin to conduct commercial services, something that should never happen. 
With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Joyce for his time.

7. HR/TAR Presentation 
Brief Discussion: Mr. Bay provided a presentation of the board’s new system to request and submit hunt 

records and transporter activity reports online. He said that instructions for the process 
can be found on the front page of the BGCSB website. He went through the instructions 
and showed the process for both requesting  and submitting hunt records. Chairman 
Bloomquist asked that licensees start using the system because it helps staff from spending 
so much time on them.

8. Probation Report 
Brief Discussion: Senior Investigator Jennifer Summers provided the board’s probation report, which was for 

the period of October 1, 2025, through December 4, 2025. She informed the board that 
there were 31 licensees on probation, four of which were out of compliance, and one of
which was suspended. One licensee had been released from probation since their last 
report. Chairman Bloomquist thought John Walker, the individual who was released from 
probation, was on suspension. Mr. Bay confirmed that Mr. Walker’s license was is 
suspended status. 

9. Investigative Report 
Brief Discussion: The board’s investigator, Lee Strout, provided the board with their investigative report, 

which was for the period of July 8, 2025, through December 5, 2025. He informed the 
board that there were 72 open cases and that 22 were closed since their last report. 
Chairman Bloomquist asked if there were any trends with violations since their last report, 
to which he said that GUA registration violations kept coming up. With nothing left to 
discuss, the board decided to enter into executive session to discuss investigative matters. 

10. Investigative Matters for Review: Executive Session 
Brief Discussion: The board moved into executive session to discuss investigative matters. 

Motion: 
Off Record: 12:09 p.m. 

I, Mike Flores, move that the Alaska State Big Game Commercial Services Board enter into 
executive session in accordance with AS 44.62.310(c), and Alaska Constitutional Right to 
Privacy Provisions, for the purpose of discussing subjects that tend to prejudice the 

DD DRAFT
t ontot on 

services, somservic 
hanked Mr. Joyce fo hanked Mr. 

FTFT T 
n of the board’s new  systemn of the board’s new system 

vity  reports online. He saidy reports onli 
nt page of  the BGCSB websi the BG 

ess for both requesting andss for both requesting 
that licensees start using tcensees start using t 

on them. n th 
FT 

RARARA 
r  Investigator Jennifer SumInvestigator Jennifer Sum 

e period of d of October 1, 202October 1, 202 
there were 31 licensees o there were 31 licen 
which was suspendedwhich was suspended 
reportre . Chairman B irm 
probation, probation, was wa

spendespendedd 

RA 
D D 



reputation and character of any person, provided the person may request a public 
discussion; and matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential. Board staff Thomas Bay, Janet Brown, Jenni Summers, Lee Strout to remain 
during the session (First: Flores; Second: Kunder). 

Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes 

Brief Discussion: 
On Record: 1:42 p.m. 
Off Record: 11:11 a.m. 

No action was taken during executive session. The board took a break. 

11. Summary/Motions from Executive Session 
Brief Discussion: 
On Record: 11:18 a.m. 

Back from break, the board provided summaries and motions regarding investigative 
matters discussed in executive session. 

Case No. 2024-001066 
Motion: Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2024-001066 (First: Flores; Second: 

Kunder). 
Brief Discussion: The board considered the proposed consent agreement for Case No. 2024-001066: An 

assistant guide was convicted in a plea deal for knowingly providing a false statement and 
omitting  information on an ADF&G application. He was fined $3,000 ($0 suspended), 
placed on criminal probation for 18 months, and ordered to pay $2,000 restitution to the 
state.  His hunting privileges were suspended for 18 months. Fourteen other counts were 
dismissed in the plea deal, which the board reviewed, ranging from wanton waste and 
residency violations. The reviewing board member (RBM) recommended a 66-month 
suspension (30 months stayed), a fine of $28,000 fine ($14,250 suspended), probation for 
five years effective the date of reinstatement after suspension, and a board reprimand. 
Mr. Kunder disagreed that the licensee should be able to hold a license in the future. 

Recorded Votes: Boniek - No Kunder - No 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes 

Case No. 2025-000039 
Motion: Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000039 (First: Flores; Second: 

Kunder). 
Brief Discussion: The board considered the proposed consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000039: An 

RGO failed to renew his GUAs and provided services to eight clients within those GUAs. He 

Dk DRAdered the proposed consee proposed conse 
de was convicted in a plea de was convicted in 

information information on a n ADF&GADF 
d on crion cr minal probation fornal probation for 

ate. His hunting e. His hunting privileges 
dismissed in the dismissed in the plea dea ple 
residency violations. y violations. T 
suspensionsu  ((30 mo30
fivefive years y effeceffeDRAFTFTFTT 

ed summaries and motions ed summaries and mot 
ession.essio FT 
AFT
AFT 
FT 

nsent agreement for Case N nsent agreement fo 

AF 

KKunderunder 

AF 

D D 



also failed to complete hunt contracts for the eight clients. The reviewing board member 
(RBM) recommended a $16,000 fine ($13,000 suspended), probation for three years, and a 
board reprimand. There was no discussion. 

Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes 

Case No. 2025-000235 
Motion: Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000235 (First: Flores; Second: 

Kunder). 
Brief Discussion: The board considered the proposed consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000235: An 

assistant guide directed his client to harvest a brown bear because he perceived the brown 
bear to be charging him and his client and claimed it as a Defense of Life or Property (DLP) 
situation. The brown bear was discovered to be a sow with two first year cubs. After an 
investigation, it was determined that the DLP was inaccurate. The applicant was convicted 
in a plea deal which resulted in a $250 fine and $1,000 in restitution to the state. The RBM 
recommended a $4,000  fine ($2,000 suspended), probation for three years, and a board 
reprimand. Chairman Bloomquist said that he felt there was more people involved in the 
violation and that they should have gotten in trouble as well. 
Boniek - Yes Kunder - No 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - No 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes

Case No. 2025-000403 
Motion: Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000403 (First: Flores; Second: 

Kunder). 
Brief Discussion: The board considered the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000403: An RGO tested 

and got registered for two GMUs. After an investigation, it was found that two of the three 
required affidavits for experience within the GMUs were fraudulent. The RBM 
recommended a fine of $6,000 ($6,000 suspended contingent upon the licensee’s 
voluntary suspension of GMU 6 and GMU 21 certification until he provides sufficient 
evidence of experience approved by the board), probation for two years, and a board 
reprimand. Mr. Mumford said he would be accepting the consent agreement but that he 
felt uncomfortable because he thought it involved deception on the licensee’s part, which 
would be difficult to prove in court. Mr. Kunder agreed with him and stated that if the 

D Dumford -

RAFT TT ase No. ase No 2 

T onsent agreement for Consent agreeme 
o haro harvest a brown bear n bea bec

client and clien claimed it as a claimed it as a DD 
was discovered to be a sow w discovered to 

ermined that the DLP was in at the 
esulted in a $250 sulted in a $250 fine and fine a $ 

$4,000 fine fine ($2,000 suspend$2,000 suspend 
airman Bloomquist saiairman Bloomquist d thad tha

nd that they should have gond that they should 

T 

DRARAYes RA 
DR 
DRoomquist - Yes 

DR 
D D DRDRMcCarthy - Y DR 
DDD DD 

Flo DDDDD 



licensee came before the board again with any violations, there should be no leniency 
given. Chairman Bloomquist abstained from voting because the licensee worked for him. 

Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Abstained Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes 

Case No. 2025-001034 
Motion: Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-001034 (First: Flores; Second: 

Kunder). 
Brief Discussion: The board considered the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-001034: An RGO failed to 

renew his GUAs and provided services  to three clients within those GUAs. This is the RGO’s 
second GUA offense. The RBM recommended a one-year license suspension and stayed 
the suspension pending the  successful completion of the probation period. The RBM also 
recommended a fine of  $5,000 fine ($2,500 suspended), probation for three years, and a 
board reprimand. There was no discussion.

Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes

Case No. 2025-001048 
Motion: Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-001048 (First: Boniek; Second: 

Flores). 
Brief Discussion: The board considered the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-001048: A transporter 

sent in four late transporter activity reports. The RBM recommended a $1,000 fine ($500 
suspended), probation for two years, and a board reprimand. 

Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes 

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes 

Mumford - Yes 

DDD
AFTTT ase No. ase No 2 

T eementeeme for Case No. or Cas 20
ces ces to three clientto three clients s within t w

ecommended a oneecommende -year ar ll
successful completionccessful comp of th 

$5,000 fine ($2,500 e ($2,5 suspend 
ere was no discussion.e was no discussion.

T 

RAF
RAF 
AF 

RARAYes 

RA 
DRARAthy - RA 
D DR 
DRores 

DR 
DDDD DRDRMumford - YeDDDR 
D D D 



11. Exams 
Brief Discussion: Chairman updated the board on the exam changes that were discussed at a previous board 

meeting. He reminded the board that they were trying to move all exams except for the 
caping video to be done online, which would include a regulations project to include 
adding certain prerequisites that would take place of the in-person practical exams and 
removing the requirement for an in-person practical exam. Mr. Bay reminded the board 
that they still needed to motion to approve having the GMU exams provided online 
through Prov. 

Motion: Move to approve having the Game Management Unit exams provided online through Prov 
(First: Kunder; Second: Flores). 

Recorded Votes: Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Absent 

McCarthy - Yes Lorring - Yes

Flores - Yes Hauch - Yes

Mumford - Yes 

12. Schedule Next Meeting(s) 
Brief Discussion: Mr. Bay explained how the AO 360 spreadsheet regarding discretionary requirements 

worked. He informed them that they have 335 total discretionary requirements, which 
needed to be  reduced by 15% (50.25) by the end of 2026 and 25% (83.75) by the end of 
2027, resulting in  a total goal of 251.25 discretionary requirements. He reminded them 
that if they wanted to move forward with their intended regulation projects it would 
increase the total number of discretionary requirements by 33. After discussion, the board 
decided to work on their own regarding AO 360 and convene for a meeting on January 28, 
2025.

Brief Discussion: With nothing left to discuss, Chairman Bloomquist adjourned the meeting.

Adjourn: 2:21 p.m.

Date Final Minutes Approved by the Board: 
✝ Meeting       ✝ OnBoard 

DRAFTT T T TT
Lor 

T TFT 
FT 
FTFT Hauc TTT 
FTFT 
FT 
FTFT 
FTFTFT 
FT

AFT
AFT
AFT 
FTFT 

w the AO 360 spreadsheet w the AO 360 spreadsh 
med them that they have 33em that they have 33 

reduced by educ 15%15% ( (50.25) 50.25) by by 
ting in ating in a totto al goal of 251.2oal o

hey wanted to move forwahey wanted to move forw 
ease the total number of die the total number of di 

ee cided to cided work on their ow work o 
2025. 20

AF 

DWith nothing left to ng left to DDDR 
D 

2:212:21 pp.m.. D D 



	
 		     

 

	 	  	 

  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*)	*
++		!#,! - .# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*)/*++0
1
+
+ 
2++0+0 
+2


+ 

+ 

3 .+1 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*)*+
2

+
0
0+2
	 

!"#$%#&!)*)"* 
3 4# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*)*2
+0

+5)* 
++6	!"#$%#&!)*)*1) *+7+2
 

8		($#99!1)*+6
''2' 
'
'
+:+ 
1
+ 

00+0

0
 

+ 

+
 

3 
01 
# 

, 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*);*
+

+
++	 

!"#$%#&!$ 
3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*).*+
++
 

+


 

+
	!"#$%#&!)*)$* 

3 .# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#)!* )*)*)<*
+5+++=	'>+=	= 

?''>=?
 
3 .# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#& ($# )*)*)@*
.
<A@;2
9! 


 

3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#& ($# )*)*)B*C+.

 3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&, ($# )*)*)*++B+'/:'3'
 

0+ 
3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*)	*++ 	#&'+
2++0+' 





+5'0+

 

3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*)*)/*
'''

0+''
+ 


 '0
0

+
 
0: 

3 D# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*.

+++')*
'
+
++
 

+2


+# 
- +# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*E
2++
++
=6+
 


0+++	!"#$%#&!)*)"*+%$
 


6# 

3 
+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*B
)*F)*
 '+)*
0 


$0
2 
+
+1)*'+%$ 



6
+=6'0 

+=

+


 

++
+5:+++
++26+0 

G)	*
+1)/*+1)*01)*
1 
);*
 1).*

1)<*
1)@*+1)B*+:1)*1)H*1)4* 
+1)I*1)-*:2+2
# 

3 	0''# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*E
2++
++
=6)*F)* 

00

+6# 

- +++2# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#)* >)*	+2
6
:
+
6 

#? 
3 .0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#!$ )*E
2+++= 2

	 

!"#$%#&!)*
#	+=+)*+ 

+0
1)*
+ +		!#,!1),*+%$ 


2

+
++00+2
 

	!"#$%#&!1)%*
'''

0+''
 

+
 '0 
0

 

+
0:1)$*
0+0+	!"#$%#&!)*),*1)&* 
0
2


+06# 

3J- )'0*+ 

# 
, 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#!$ )*.

+++'
+
++
+ 

2


+# 
- +# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*E++=+'+
)*+6' 
2

++60)	*
  ++
1)/*+1 
)*61)*+1

6'
 

+00+
+ +1)* 
6+# 

3 +60+#  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*E

+= 
6($
6# 

3 

+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*=)*+# -J	 -++# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&! ($#)!* )*E
2++
++
6 

+'+%$

6
+6')*2 

++6+
		!#,!1) *

0' 
+&!2

2


+' 


++20
+G)	*1)/*
1)*1>)*1);*0#? 

3 C''0 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&! ($#)* )*	+:6

# 3 4# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*E
2+++
+)*
 


1)*
6 '
2

 


'
+A:2+''
 ''+'+2
1 

),*=2
0++1
 ++
00+= 

+'
2++2

+)	*
++
+ 

	!"#$%

+=+
 
+1)/*
+26=+2
	!"#$%#&&! 

!"#$%#&(!# 

3J- )6'*# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*E
2++
++6
 

)*)*
0

+6# 
3 
+0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&! ($#)* >)*	+2
6
:
+
6 

#? 
3 .# 



	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#$ )*	+=+2
 +	!"#$%#&!)*),*)/*')* 
+!

6
+6')	*
 

++		!#,!1)/*++ 0
1)* 

+
2

+
0
0+2
	!"#$%#&!)*)"*1 
)*2
+0

+5)*+ 
+6	!"#$%#&!)*)*1)* +7+2
 

8		($#99!1)*+6
''2' 
'
'
+:+ 
1
+ 

00+0

0
 

+ 

+
1);*
+

+
++ 

	!"#$%#&!$1).*+
+ +


+

 




+
	!"#$%#&!)*)$*1)<*
+5+ 

+

	!"#$%#&!)*),*)/*'0+$ 
+61)*+%$

6
+6 

')	*++ 	#&'+
 

2++0+'



 +A'0+ 


1)/*
'''

0+'' 

+
 '0
0 



+
0:1)*0+ 

+=
+A:+++
++26+ 

0G)*
+1)*+1)*01)0* 


1)0*
 1)0*

1)0*
1)0*+1)6*+:1)6*1)6* 
1)6*+1)6*1)60*:2+2
# 

3 .''0'# $ 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#$ )*.

+++'
+
++
+ 

2


+# 
- +# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#$ )*E
2++
++
6+
 

0+++	!"#$%#&!)*)"*+%$

 

6# 

3 
+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#$ )*+(J,!J!!&# -J	 -++# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($#$)* >)*	+2
6
:
+
6 

#? 
3 .# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&(!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&&! 

($#()* >)*	+2
+=6+62
2 



6#B'2
2

6'
+ 
++6'
++ ++'
+ 

	!"#$%

+=+#? 

3 6# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&(!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&&! 

($#()* >)*	+2
+6+6 

2
2

6#B'2
2

6' 

+++6'
+ )*
+ 

6	!"#$%#&!)*)%*++ '++= 

'
6
+	!"#$%#&&!!"#$%#&(!2+ 
0'
++ ++'
+	 

!"#$%

+ =+1)*
++ 

=
6+2

'
6'
 
0=2+	!"#$%#&&!!"#$%#&(!
'
+ 

6+'
+ +		($# 




6 #? 

3 6# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&(!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&&! 

($#()* >)*E+6'+'+%$

6')* 

261)*
6		!#,!
 

6#? 

3 C# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&(!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&&! 
($#()* >)*E
'++2'20
++)*
#? 3 C0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&(!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&&! 

($#(),* >)*	60+
2#B
6)*= 
6''2
2

6'
++ 

='
++ ++'
+	 

!"#$%

+ =+1)*6 

	!"#$%#&!)*)%*++''2
2
 


6'
++='
++ 

++'
+ 	!"#$%

+ 

=+1),*6+' 
	!"#$%#&!)*)%*++'
+
6= 
+2

'2

2=

6 0+'
0= 
2+	!"#$%#&&!!"#$%#&(!'
++

+ 
+	!"#$%#&!)*)%*#? 

3 0+# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*E
2++++=	+2

	 

!"#$%#&!
# 
- +# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*/+=	+2++'
 0)*
		 

!#,!1)*++0
1),*0
+5 

+++''
6	!"#$%#&!)*)%*1++ 

+=	+)	*	!"#$%#&!)*)%*)	*

++)*0' 

+='6
	 

!"#$%#&!)*)%*)	*)*1)*0

+



6	 

!"#$%#&!)*)%*)	*)*1)/*	!"#$%#&!)*)%*)/*
 
++)*
0	 

!"#$%#&!)*)%*)/*)*
+1)*
0 
60+2

 

+



6	!"#$%#&!)*)%*)/*)*1)*+ 

+=2
+
++=	1)%* 


+50+
+KK
1 
)$*
+

+
++	 

!"#$%#&!$1)&*++ 	#&'+
2++0+' 




+A'0+
 

1)(*
'''

0+''
 

+
 '0 
0

 

+
0:1)"*
 
0 


0	!"#$%

'(!# 

3J- )'0'* 

+# 
% 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&! ($# )*	+=	+	!"#$%#&!)*)%*)/*+ 
2


+
++
	!"#$%#&!)*)%*)	*# 

3 +# 



	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&,!'	!"#$%#(9!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&,$ 

($#, )*E
2++++2

	 

!"#$%#&,!
#	++
++)*
		!#,!1)* 
++0
1),*
+50+ 


	+KK
1)%*+
 

++

+




+
 

	!"#$%#&,!)*)*1)$*20	!"#$%#&,!)*)%*1)&* 


+

+
++	!"#$%#&!$1 
)(*++ 	 #&'+
2++0+' 





+A'0+

1 
)"*
'''

 0+''
+ 


 '0
0

+
 
0:1)9*
  
0
0 

	!"#$%

'(!# 

3J- )'0'* 

+# 
% 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&,!'	!"#$%#(9!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&,$ 

($#, )*	+06++ 

0 	!"#$%#&,$)*'2
+
++ 

# 

3 E0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&,!'	!"#$%#(9!'	 

!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&,$ 

($#, )*E
++
'
++2
+ 

+
0+
 

'+#	+:0
 

++
2
+0#C
+++ 

+
++:'':':++':++'
+ 


+0
 +#	+
 



+:':':+# 

3 00# 

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!! ($#% ='+=	'+6,= 

# 
3 ;6# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! ($#%$)* )*E
2++++2

	!"#$%#&$! 


#	++)*++0 


1)*
++		!# ,!1),*++ 

2
		($#%!1>)%*
.+	0	L<+ 

++
+A1?)$*
0+2
+
 

A01)&*
 
0
 

0	!"#$%

'(!# 

3J- )'0'* 

+# 
% 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! ($#%$ )*B
)*
 '+
)* 


	!'
 

K
'+	!1)*+ 

++'
+K	!#$!1),*+ 

++
'
++ 

	,#!&#9F,#!&#9$1)%*+
'
+
 

	,## 

3 # % 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! ($#%$ )*E

0+)*)$*
'++2

 

'2
!


'20


 

20++
A0# 

3 
# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! ($#%$)* >)*	+
++
2
		!#9!!
A+ 


#? 
3 -# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#($! ($# )*B
	!"#$%#(!'=00+ 

2


='+
=+
+ 
+# 

3 01 
# 

 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#($! ($# )*	=2
00'2


 

='
+++

+# 
3 +
# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($#!$ )*E
2++++
=2
0++2
 


++2
		($#!+2

#M
 


'
)*2++



= 

1)*+
=	!"#$%#(!)*)*
)	*= 

++

'+


 

A1)/*
2
+
=A1 
)*
'2
+
=A'
0+	 

!"#$%#(&!'
'		($#!# 

3 B+# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($#!$ )*E


 =#/+:
 


='

2
&!
 


:+# 

3 E# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($#!$ )*	++
+2
		($#!# 

2
		($#!# 
3 +# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($#!$ )*	0

# 3 0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($#!$ )*	6$!
2++=
= 

A0#	+
#@20'2 


2'
'=
0
$!
 

=A# 

3 46# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($#!$ )*	=2
++

++
)*K 


+

1)*++
 

		($#!# 

3 -K+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($# )*E

	!"#$%#(&!0
'+<= 

M@'!('#E
+

 
02
=# 

3 .#   

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($# )*/
'=2
''

+++ 

0+



+
# 

3 +# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($# )*	

2

+

# 3 +
0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($# )*	
+

'
=
+++
++ 


# 

3 +# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($#)* )*E
=
++>

+

+? 


=A++# 
3 .
# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($# )*	

 

+
K''+# 
3 B# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	!"#$%#(&! ($# )*B
+
2 

=' 


+
=
+#E
 

2++

=# 

3 # 



	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&"! ($# )*	+2
 

++)*

+
 

2++
+''++ +'++ 
N!!'!!!
2++0++ 
++
+5 


01)*+
'''+'++')	*
 

'
:0+++'+
'
+
1 
)/*


'
+'
 

0+
# 

3 +# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&"! ($# )*	=2

+ ++2+

= 

2+

++
0
 

)*

= 


# 

3 -0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&"! ($# )*	=
++
2 
!

 

)*
# 
3 -# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&"! ($# )*E
+
0)*
 

0++++2+# 
3 	+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#,)* )*E
2+++
+
	 

!"#$%#($!
#.
2

='
 

=
++
++20
G)*
+5 

=+1)*
2


=1 
>),*
2


 =+1)%*2 


+
+
K1?)$*2
+ 

+00+$'!!!+
 

# 

3 2# $ 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#, )*	6,
+2

#E='
= 

++)*
# 
3 ;6=# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#, )*	=60+,'+ 


+2


0# 	+++ 

2
2
++	+'
<L	2
2


# 
E
+
2+2
<L	'2


 

0
<L	

2+


2+ 


0:+#/
2++2
2#-2++
 

+++2
2# 

3 I+='2
2+'+# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#, )*B2
	!"#$%#($!'2++0,!

 


',!

++'2

0+# 
3 ;0++# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#, )*	=2

  


0+++ 2

 


=+
 =
)*)*F 

)$*)*
')*



+ 


+++ 2


= 

+1)*+
++
+


2+
2 

=
2
+ 

# 

3 	+ 

# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#, )*	='0 02
'+
+ 

2
K
+20
'+ 
0
0+$'!!!+
# 

3 C
K# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#,),* >)*	==2
2+
2 

9
!!
 !2 

9')*
==0
 

1)*
==0
)	*'0+ 

	+!'!!'
2


1)/*+' 
'

!!9

 

==
:+2
2+++
 




==2+
0 


	+!'!!+1),*
+2

== 

2++00
0
22
9 

I!'!!#? 

3 + # ,  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#, )
*	==
 


# 
3 I# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#,$ <LB;=MLE.BEE;L;	;	I	#E
+<=ML	I''99%' 

!!9'+!'!'-0!$'+!%'#E
 


-+ 

 

+
	!"#$%#($!)*# 

3 	#   

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 
($#% )*	=2


+++''

 

00
+# 
3 +''#  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

($#% )*	
+

'=2


++0+
 


'+=	'=0+0

 

2



00
+2# 

3 ;0+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

($#% )*E+2
)*
'
=
++0++' 

+
''2

+
'+=	'= 

0+0

'+
'+2
!
+

#E
 

=
++
0+

 

'
+=	' =2


 


020+'2
++2'

+# 

3 0+#  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

($#% )*E
=
++:
0++2

+ 


0+

'+=	' 
=#B
0++2

++'
 

=
++2
+
0+
 


'
+=	'=#E
= 


++2
+2
&!
+

# 

3 <
2 

# 
 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

($#% )*	=
++



=+ 

2

0+'++
2'+)*)*
# 
3 #  



	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

($#% )*E
= =+=	 

0
++0++
' 2
 

'

0 0
+'6 

2
)*6

A1)*
= 

=+=	0


 


2
+)	* 2



 

1)/*2
'+'++2


 

1)*
++ 

# 

3 	0++6#  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

($#% )
*B
'OO2

)* 

0++6'2'
+'++
+
1)* 

+1),*+
0 0+'+

:
 


+
+2


1)%*
5+ 

+# 

3 +# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,!GE
2 
+
+;6+
 

# 

($#% )*.
	!"#$%#&!)*0
'
 


'
=+'' 


)*2
+
+)	*
2



: 

+1)/* 
2

2


 


:+1)*+


$!+
 
)	*)/*

1)*
0'2
+
+ 

++)*
'+1

'+'' 



+
= 

'+++
'++2

'+=	 

'=0+0

# 

3 +''#  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,!GE
 
+
+;6+
 
2
 
2 

4	C 

($#%)2* ) *.

'780+0
# - 0+#  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! ($#$ )*	=2

2

	 

!"#$%#&,!)*),*
++'
++

'2

'2
 


+2

+'+



+
0# 

3 #  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! ($#$ )*B
'78+=''+
'+# 3 #  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! ($#$ )*	=2


++)*+0+
+'0
 

+
''+2


=2++:
+
 

+
+++2
=+:
++1)*
 
++

+=	''+'
+ 


+
+''+'+02
'
++' 

1),*
:2
+
+
 
+# 

3 	0''
:# ,  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 
($#& )*	=
+++02 
+2
9! 

'00'2

0+# 
3 +0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 

($#&)* )*	)*+
'+' 
='+
 


=5

0+=1)*+
 


+1),*+
+
'
+ 


1)%*+
6

+ 2++
+1)$*+

 


'1)&*

+1)(*

 


''2
+
 
+1)"*
6 

'1)9*+00'++'+'+ 

'

''+2
+2
1)!*
 

+++1)*++
 

+0
+
+
+
+

1)* 
2
+0++# 

3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 
($#& )*	=
++
+# 3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 

($#&)!* )*	2


'2
++ 

2

+ 	&#!$'
++ 

0
2

0 
 

+
+#L02+++2
 

+



+

 

0+160++22


 


K0++


+

 

00#L02+++
 

62
2#L0++K
 

2
++2
# 

3 L0 %  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#&$ )*E
) *21)*
 


.
<1),* 
# 
3 	# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#&$ )*	+9!
2
 

' 

2+++
'2++ '+ 

#E+

A6' 
0
+
&!
+
# 

3 +# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#&$ )*B
' 
2+++
 
)*
=2
0++2

 
2

1)*
-+1),*
.
<1 
)%*
+# 

3 -# % 



	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#($! ($#&$ )*E
2

)*
.
< 

 
1)*6 
)	*0'+)*0 

1)*

+
01) *60+
 
2++1)/*+21)*+2
1)*0 

1);*
6
 +
+1).*
+ 


1)<*
6+++2
 

1)@*
-+1)B*
6+2

1)* 

+01)H*
+0
2# 

3 	# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"!'	!"#$%#(! ($#,%)!* )*L
+0#	='=''+=	 


+0
++	!"#$%#(!#B
 

'O
+0O)*++
 
+++'+' 
:2+':++'+'  

+
+1)*+)	*++2

)*F)*
1 
)/*+++++
+	!"#$%#(!1)*+ 

+++
0'
'


1)*+
' 
2
,!
0'0
 '
'
L)* 
0++++
1)*0++ 
++'''

01)*+1);*++ 

2

# 

3 

+0 # & 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"!'	!"#$%#(! ($#,%)!* )*+2
+2#	+++
++)*+2
+++ 

+1)*
K0''+ 
+
0
0# 

3 +
K# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"!'	!"#$%#(! ($#,%)%* )*++#	+++ 
++)*:0+
 


+'+


)	*+0 

 
+6
+1)/*+0 
'+'+
'
1)*
+
++ 

+1)*0++':++'++6+ 
+
K1>),*0++0+0

+++ 
++
'+'2++'
0'01)%* 




+'
''
 0

 


+5

1)$*


 

:++++:$		91)&*0+

 

+

1?)(*0++ 
2+'22+# 

3 ''# ( 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"!'	!"#$%#(! ($#,%)$*)* )*.+#	+++
++)*
+0++:' 
2++'2++'++2
1)*0+2+
+5 

+2+2
+ '''2
+
+ 
2++=1),*'+++ 

'+++'
'
'+0
6
+
+ 


+'+
0+ 

0
+1>)%*0+0+++:+' 2
 

+1)$*62'KK+'2+0'2+0'
 

+:
+2
$		91)&*'''
+' 

+

1?)(*0
 

+K+1)"*++22
0
 


61>)9*
+2:2+
'0'
' 

+1?)!*0+

6

': 

++'0

+2 '+ 

+

'+)	*
2'KK+'+: 



,!2
++2+
0$		"$$		9'2 

KK++1

'O+O

0$		9#99!1 
)/*++
K
+1>)*0+K++)<* 

+0++:+

01?)* 

++



1 
+2
+

'2
' 

# 

3 .+
+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"!'	!"#$%#(! ($#,%)* )*2
+202#	+++
++ 
)*2
++21) *0+2 
+2+++1>),*2++02 
02
+2

+#? 

3 0# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"!'	!"#$%#(! ($#,% )*+#	)*+:


 

+:
1)*
++00
+' 

:
:
0+'++'
2+		 

($#%!1),*0++
	!"#$%'0++
 

+++1+0
0+ 
+2

2:
2'6
++2

2:+
 
+ +2




 K0
01 



'O+O

0	,"#!$#9&$1)%*0	!"#$%' 
0++0# 

3 +0# % 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! 		($#,9$ )*L'
2++02
0++#M
 


0'
)*2++ 


+ 

1)*+
	!"#$%#(!)*)*
)	*+ 
+
0'+
 

A1 
)/*02
+
A1)*0'2
+
 

A'
0+	!"#$%#&$!'
'		($#%!!# 

3 ++6++ 

# 
, 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! 		($#,9$ )*E
0+
#E0 


# 
3 
# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! 		($#,9$ )*	++0+2
		($#%!!# 3 B+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! 		($#,9$ )*	00
 # 3 0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! 		($#,9$ )*+JJ!# - -# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! 		($#,9$ )*	6$!02++
A 

0#	+0#@20'2 

2'
'
0
$! 
0
A# 

3 6# 



	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&! 		($#,9$ )*	2
++0
++
)*K 


+
01)*++ 


		($#%!!# 

3 B+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#(&! 

		($#%!! )*;
0	!"#$%#&$!0
'+ 

E	0'M!'#E
+

 
02
	!"#$%#&$!# 

3 '+#   ( 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#(&! 
		($#%!! )*M
+'
+++
0+

 

0
+
# 
3 B+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#(&! 
		($#%!! )*B+
+
+'

+++
++ 


0# 
3 +# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#(&! 

		($#%!! )*E

++:
00++
 

+
K'' 

+# 

3 B# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#(&! 

		($#%!! )*
'60
 

2
00+''2+
 
=2


 
2

+# 

3 06# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#(&! 

		($#%!! )*E+2

+	!"#$%#&$!)*'
++
 

+0
02
($
+ 

0# 

3 +# 

-GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

		($#%!$)2* )*
++:2 
=
#
 

++J&
:



2
.%#%$# 
3 :K
  

-GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

		($#%!$)2* )*	0+
++:2
0+#)*+ 
+++

0+#E

0+6
0+1
 

++6+'+2'++0+#)*.
0++ 

:'2++0
0 '

0++ 

++0+#),*00= 

+++2+#)%*00+ 

+#)$*B+2

2+
++++

 




0#)&*+:0+'
'++K 
++0+#)(*.2

+'
++
+ 

2

0
 
0++0 0#)"*	++ 


K

0# 

3 +  

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!! 		($#%! )*	+6,=# 3 6# 
	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 
		($#%! )*+JJ!!(# - -# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 

		($#%! )*	++
++)*
 
+
2++
+ 

''+++'++N!!'!!!
2++0++ 
 
++
+501)*+
 

'''+'++')	*
'
:0+++' 
+
'
+
1)/*

 


'
+'
0+
 
# 

3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 
		($#%! )*	
++
2
!

)* 


# 
3 B# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&"! 
		($#%! )*E
+
0)*
 

0+++2+# 
3 	++2
# 

	!"#$%#&!! 		($#%,! )*+(J,!J!!&# - -# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#(9! 

		($#%%! )*L
+0#	'='= 


+0
++	!"#$%#(!#B
'O
+0O 

)*++
++ 

+'+'
:2+':++'+ ' 1 

)*+)	*++2

 )*F)*
1)/*++2
 

+
+	!"#$%#(!1)*++2
 

# 

3 
+0+ 

# 
, 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#(9! 

		($#%%! )*+2
+2#	= 00
++)*+ 

2
++++1)*
K 

0''++
00# 

3 B+
K# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#(9! 

		($#%%! )*+#	=0 

0
++)*:0+

+'+
 
2
+
+00)	*+0  


+62
+001)/*+0 

'+'+
'
1)*+0+
+'0
+ 

''+2


 =2++:
+
 


+
+++2
=+:
+ 
+1),*
+
+
+''+'+0 

2
'
++'
1)%*
:2
+
+ 


+1)$*++00+: 

'
++0+ 0+

+01)&* 
2+++:++ 
2+
 

+1)(*0
+K+1)"* 
0+++:+'2
+1)9*0 


:+1)!*0+K' 

'++)<*
+0
:+1 
)*0
'0'
+2


++21)*0 

0:+


 =+:
2+ 


++
+1),*++22 



00

61)%*0 

:


+:
# 

3 ++ 

# 
% 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#(9! 

		($#%%! )*2
+202#	 
=00
 ++)*2
++2 
1)*0+2+2+++1),* 

2++0202
+2

 

+# 

3 B02# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#(9!GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

		($#%%!)2* )*0++0	!"#$%' 

0++0+++1 

00++2

2:
 

2'6
++2

2: 

+
+ +2


5++++ 


# 

3 2
+  



	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(!'	 

!"#$%#(9!GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

		($#%%!)2* )*
O+O

0	,"#!$#9&$ - 
O+O  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&"!'	 

!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9! 

		($#%$! )*	=++00
+++0 

2
+)*2
9!'0 

01)*+'00'0+
 

9!00# 

3 +0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&"!'	 

!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9! 

		($#%$!)* )*	200)*+
'+' 

='+

5=5 



0+=1)*+

 

+1>),*+
+
1?)%*
'
+'2
 
+'1)$*
+++1)&*
0 
+1)(*
00 1)"*

+++0 



1)9*

+ ++0


+
 
+++
1)!*

 2


 

+
+'
++
'D@.'0+
'+01)*2
 

+
61)*+
++2G7	+ 

002
 ++'
' 

2
2
+0++2#	+ 

+2

2
+
6 

081),*+
++2G7	+ 

00
+'+''
' 
0
:''+ 

'+':
+'++2#8 

3 +# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&"!'	 

!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9! 
		($#%$! )*	
++
+# 3 B# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&$!'	!"#$%#&"!'	 

!"#$%#(!'	!"#$%#(9! 

		($#%$! )*
'6
2
 

00+''2+
 
=2


 
2

+# 

3 06# 

-GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

		($#%$$)2* )*	+
++

00
 

	!"$%




+
 
0''+
0# 

3 
+  

-GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

		($#%$$)2* )*E
+

'
' 

+=
02:
+# 
- -#  

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(%! 		($#%&! )*	=2
2++++,!'!!&'2
2
 



''2''
0

 

=5+
K# 

3 B=+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#(%! 		($#%&! )*E+
6+'
=)* 

++0
1)*0
= 



=
0+0

0 



# 

3 +6# 

-GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

		($#&$$)2* )*	+'	!"#$%#&$!)*'00

 

2
+0++2#B0
0'
)*+ 

00
+2
+ 


0++
1)*
++

2
++
 


+#.

 '+
 


#E
++

+ 


+
# 

-3)!* 1=2
 

+0+2# 
 

-GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

,		($#&$$)2* )*
	!"#$%#&$!)*72
+ 08

)* 

6+0++
0+'
+'' 

1)*

+'
2:+
1),* 
++
++++:0' '':2

2 
+


# 

3 2
O2
+0O
0 

 

 

-GE
+
 

+;6+
2 

 
24	C 

%		($#&$$)2* )*

78L<+M 
LD+# 

- 
OO  

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&(! 
		($#9!! )*E
+2+	!"#$%#&&!!"#$%#&(!++	!"#$%#$9F 

!"#$%#(9!# 
- # ! 

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&(! 
		($#9!! )*+JJ!!(# - -# ! 

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&(! 
		($#9!! )*+JJ!!(# - -# ! 



	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&(! 

		($#9!! )*	+2+=+ )*+2++ 

0
1)*
+2+		!#,!1),*
+2++ 


+2


++' 
++	!"#$%#&"!)*1)%*2


+ 



++1)$*
0	 

!"#$%#&&!)*# 

3 2++ 

# 
$ 

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&(! 

		($#9!! )*	+2++ )*+2++ 

0
1)*
+2+		!#,!1),*+ 
+	!"#$%#&"!)*1)%*2


+0 

0
++1)$*
0+2
+
 

501)&*
.+	0 	L< 

+++
+51)(*

++0		 

($#%$)*'
+'+++'+++
'+ 


1)"*
0	!"#$%#&&!)*# 

3 2++ 

# 
" 

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&(! 

		($#9!! )*	+2++=	+)*+2+ 
+0
1)*
+2+		!#,!1),*
 


=
+
+
++# 

3 2++ 

# 
, 

	!"#!#!!'	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&&!'	 

!"#$%#&(! 
		($#9!! )*.

+++2+'
+
++
+ 

2


+# 
3 B+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(! 		($#9! )*B	!"#$%#(!)*)*'7++

8+)*+ 

++1)*
+++# 
3 ++++# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

		($#9! )*E

''++6	!"#$%#&!F!"#$%#&,!2+++ 



+A
+ 
20+ 


2

6+ # 

3 	0+6# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

		($#9! )*.

6	!"#$%#&!'
+ 
+!
0+0 

# 

3 0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

		($#9! )*.

6 	!"#$%#&!)*)%*)	*)*'
 

++&!0
+# 
3 0# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

		($#9! )*.
	!"#$%#&,!)*)*'
++ 
&!
02+#	+,!
&! 

0+2
+=+# 

 	!"#$%#&,!)*)%*)/* 
!# 

3 '0'# , 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

		($#9! )*.

	!"#$%#&,!)*)%*) 	*'
2 


=2
+
 



+

++2 G)*
:2+6 


1)*
:2++ 

+1),*
:2+
 '': '
'
1 
)%*
+
'+:'
0+
 

+
1)$*
:2+6 + 

+# 

3 +# $ 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

		($#9! )*.

	!"#$%#&!)*)*'2
+ 

=+
=0
0+=	 

'2'
==

+!' 

6


=2++
 

# 

3 +6# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!$'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&,! 

		($#9! )*B
'7
08+2: 
0 

+2
+=+# 
3 +06# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"! 		($#9,! )*L00+
+
'
 


+	!"#$%#&"!# 
3 # 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&"! 		($#9,! )*E
2++:
2'2++ 

+2
 

#C
,!0
'
= 

++0
 
#E
6 


++,!# 

3 2+# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#(9! 		($#9%! )*.
78	!"#$%#(9!'708+ 

0'++'0 0''+
 

+2
'')*
1)*
0' 
'+# 

3 ;6# 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&,!'	!"#$%#(! 

		($#99! )*L+
6
2'	!"#$%

')*78
/< 

+0/1)*78
+

1),* 
78
'';0+1)%* 
7+2
8+0'+2
	!"#$% 



'
0+	!"#$%#(9!)9*')*')*# 

- 0+# ! 

	!"#$%#&!!'	!"#$%#&!'	!"#$%#&!'	 

!"#$%#&,!'	!"#$%#(! 

		($#99! )*L+
6
2'

')*78

0	 

&#!$#9%!1)*7+8
+''+'' 
+'0++
+++
 

+# 

- 0+# ! 

 

    


 	



	 ! 	


"#$  %&	



 
	"#$  

!'()*+! 

!*+!)!*!,
&
"-
'(),"
"$
&-



Big Game Commercial Services Board Adopted by Reference Discretionary 
Requirements: 

Adopted by Reference Document # of discretionary requirements 
Registered Guide-Outfitter Hunt Record – 
December 2017 

13 

Guide-Outfitter Use Area Maps – updated 
July 2024 

0 

Transporter Activity Report – October 2012 16 
Total: 29 

Registered Guide-Outfitter Hunt Record – December 2017: 13 

Requirement Breakdown 

Pre-Hunt Requirements 

1. Contracting guide must complete and submit the form. 

2. Must check one of: Guided, Transported Only, or Outfitted Only. 

3. Must provide client’s full information (name, license number, address, etc.). 

4. Must list all guides, assistant guides, or packers accompanying the client. 

5. Must specify hunt dates. 

6. Must indicate transportation methods (boat, aircraft, other). 

7. Must sign the form prior to the hunt. 

Post-Hunt Requirements 

8. Form must be submitted within 60 days after hunt completion. 

9. Contracting guide must certify that all information is true and correct. 

10. Must certify compliance with 12 AAC 75.240 (communication requirement). 

11. Must sign again after the hunt is complete. 

Legal Warnings (Implied Requirements) 

12. Must not falsify information (subject to AS 11.56.210). 

13. Must not omit material facts (subject to AS 08.54.710 and 12 AAC 75.210). 

Total Discretionary Requirements: 13 



Transporter Activity Report – October 2012: 16 

Requirement Breakdown 

Pre-Transport Requirements 

1. Transporter must complete the top portion of the form on the day of transport into 
the field. 

2. Must provide transporter business name and license number. 

3. Must check one of the service types (Drop-Off & Pick-Up, Drop-Off Only, Pick-Up 
Only). 

4. Must provide full client information (name, license number, address, phone, etc.). 

5. Must specify date transported to field. 

6. Must specify specific location and GMU/Subunit. 

7. Must indicate method of transportation used (aircraft, boat, other). 

8. Must sign and certify that the information is true and correct. 

Post-Transport Requirements 

9. Must complete bottom portion immediately after transporting client out of the field. 

10. Must specify date transported from field. 

11. Must specify specific location. 

12. Must list species harvested (with bear type if applicable). 

13. Must estimate pounds of meat transported. 

14. Must sign and certify again that the information is true and correct. 

Legal Warnings (Implied Requirements) 

15. Must not falsify or omit material facts (subject to AS 08.54.710 and 12 AAC 75.400). 

16. Must not commit unsworn falsification (AS 11.56.210). 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

1 

Chapter 75. Big Game Commercial Services Board. 

(Words in boldface and underlined indicate language being added; words [CAPITALIZED 
AND BRACKETED] indicate language being deleted. Complete new sections are not in 
boldface or underlined.) 

12 AAC 75.200 is amended to read: 

12 AAC 75.200. Registered guide-outfitter providing services. (a) In addition to the 

restrictions in AS 08.54.720 and 12 AAC 75.340, a registered guide-outfitter may provide 

transportation services [ONLY IN] 

(1) within a guide use area for which the guide-outfitter is registered [, UNLESS 

THE GUIDE-OUTFITTER ALSO HOLDS A TRANSPORTER LICENSE]; and 

(2) to and from a guide use area, as set out under AS 08.54.790 (7), if the 

transportation services originate or terminate in a guide use area for which the guide-

outfitter is registered [UNLESS THE GUIDE-OUTFITTER ALSO HOLDS A 

TRANSPORTER LICENSE]. (Eff. 75/24/96, Register 138; am 10/19/96, Register 140; am 

4/6/2001, Register 158; am/readopt 7/30/2006, Register 179; am ____/____/______, Register 

_____). 

Authority: AS 08.54.600 AS 08.54.610  AS 08.54.750 

12 AAC 75.230 (g) is repealed: 

(g) Repealed  ____/____/______.  [A REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER OR 

MASTER GUIDE-OUTFITTER WHO WAS UNABLE TO HUNT A BROWN BEAR IN 

GAME MANAGEMENT UNIT 9 IN THE SPRING 2020 SEASON MAY REGISTER FOR 

THE 2021 SPRING BROWN BEAR SEASON IN GAME MANAGEMENT UNIT 9, IF 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

2 

(1) THE REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER OR MASTER GUIDE-

OUTFITTER REGISTERS ON A FORM PROVIDED BY THE DEPARTMENT; 

(2) THE REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER OR MASTER GUIDE-

OUTFITTER PROVIDES EITHER 

(A) A CURRENT REGISTRATION, VALID AS OF APRIL 10, 2020, 

FOR THE SAME GUIDE USE AREA FOR WHICH THE REGISTRATION IS 

SUBMITTED; OR 

(B) COPIES OF COMPLETED, SIGNED, AND DATED HUNT 

CONTRACTS FOR THE 2020 SPRING BEAR SEASON IN GAME MANAGEMENT 

UNIT 9 INDICATING THAT THE REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER OR MASTER 

GUIDE-OUTFITTER HAD BOOKED CLIENTS WHO WERE LATER UNABLE TO 

COMPLETE THE CONTRACTED HUNT AND AN ATTESTATION THAT THE 

REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER OR MASTER GUIDE-OUTFITTER WOULD 

HAVE REGISTERED BEFORE THE APRIL 10, 2020 DEADLINE; AND 

(3) THE CLIENTS FOR WHOM THE REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER OR 

MASTER GUIDE-OUTFITTER WILL PROVIDE SERVICES HAVE NOT HUNTED 

BROWN BEAR IN A GUIDE USE AREA WITHIN GAME MANAGEMENT UNIT 9 SINCE 

MAY 10, 2020.] (Eff. 75/24/96, Register 138; am 10/19/96, Register 140; am 4/6/2001, Register 

158; am/readopt 7/30/2006, Register 179; am 6/8/2007, Register 182; am 12/1/2007, Register 

184; am 7/16/2020, Register 235; am 11/38/2020, Register 236; am____/____/______, Register 

_____). 

Authority: AS 08.54.600 AS 08.54.750 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

3 

12 AAC 75.240(a) is amended to read: 

 (a) A registered guide-outfitter who contracts to guide a hunt shall plan, direct, and 

monitor the big game hunting services provided to the client.  The contracting registered 

guide-outfitter must be physically present in this state and able to respond to all 

communications and needs of the client and employees participating in currently 

contracted hunts.  This location must be within a proximity to the ongoing hunt that 

provides for responsive logistics and client care. 

12 AAC 75.240(c) is amended to read: 

(c) To comply with (b) of this section, the contracting registered guide-outfitter shall 

[VERBALLY] communicate, [BY TELEPHONE OR RADIO, OR IN PERSON,] with the client 

and the assistant guide, class-A assistant guide, or registered guide- outfitter involved in the hunt, 

separately or together, at least once within 10 days after the conclusion of the hunt. The 

contracting registered guide-outfitter shall obtain the necessary information to evaluate the 

performance of the assistant guide, the class-A assistant guide, or registered guide-outfitter and 

determine whether the big game hunting services were provided safely, in accordance with state 

and federal law, and to the satisfaction of the client. If the attempt to communicate with the 

client is unsuccessful, the contracting registered guide-outfitter shall contact the client and 

request the necessary information to evaluate the performance of the assistant guide, the 

class-A assistant guide, or registered guide-outfitter. The contracting registered guide-

outfitter shall contact the client within 60 days after the conclusion of the hunt. 

12 AAC 75.240(d) is repealed: 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

4 

(d) Repealed ; ____/____/______.  [THE CONTRACTING REGISTERED GUIDE-

OUTFITTER SHALL MAKE A GOOD FAITH EFFORT TO VERBALLY COMMUNICATE 

WITH THE CLIENT TO OBTAIN THE NECESSARY INFORMATION TO EVALUATE 

THE PERFORMANCE OF THE ASSISTANT GUIDE, CLASS-A ASSISTANT GUIDE, OR 

REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER. IF THE ATTEMPT TO VERBALLY COMMUNICATE 

WITH THE CLIENT IS UNSUCCESSFUL, THE CONTRACTING REGISTERED GUIDE-

OUTFITTER SHALL WRITE TO THE CLIENT AND REQUEST THE NECESSARY 

INFORMATION TO EVALUATE THE PERFORMANCE OF THE ASSISTANT GUIDE, 

THE CLASS-A ASSISTANT GUIDE, OR REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER. THE 

CONTRACTING REGISTERED GUIDE- OUTFITTER SHALL WRITE TO THE CLIENT 

WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE HUNT.] 

12 AAC 75.240(e) is amended to read: 

(e) A registered guide-outfitter shall document on the hunt record the date the registered 

guide-outfitter complied with the [VERBAL, OR IF APPLICABLE THE WRITTEN,] client 

communication requirements in (c) [AND (d)] of this section. 

12 AAC 75.240(f) is repealed and readopted to read: 

(f) A contracting registered-guide outfitter, noncontracting registered guide-outfitter or 

class-A assistant guide, supervising an assistant guide shall be physically present in a location 

from which to supervise the contracted hunt by means of in-person, or electronic, 

communication with the supervised assistant guide. The supervising guide must 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

5 

(1) attempt daily communication with the supervised assistant guide and be 

available at all times for communication to direct and monitor the big game hunting services 

provided to the client, except 

(A) during times when an emergency situation exists that requires the 

guide's assistance; or 

(B) if the supervising guide’s means of communication malfunctions for a 

reason out of the control of the supervising guide; 

(2) be in the field, except when 

(A) in transit with, or while processing, meat or trophies from the current 

season of hunts; 

(B) in transit with, or while acquiring, food, supplies, or clients directly 

associated with the current season of hunts;  

(C) conducting important duties that are essential for the safe completion 

of the current season of hunts; 

(D) conducting maintenance or repairs on vehicles as necessary to 

complete the current season of hunts; or 

(E) conducting a hunt that primarily takes place, or involves clients that 

are primarily housed, in a location outside of the field as defined under AS 08.54.790(7). 

12 AAC 75.240(i) is amended to read: 

(i) For purposes of the requirement in AS 08.54.610(e) for supervision of a contracted 

hunt, and in addition to the requirements of this section, the contracting registered guide-outfitter 

must [MAY] plan, direct, and monitor a contracted hunt 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

6 

(1) while in the field for the purpose of [AND PRESENT IN] 

(A) accompanying a client who has contracted the hunt; or [THE 

SAME GAME MANAGEMENT UNIT IN WHICH THE CONTRACTED HUNT IS 

TAKING PLACE] 

(B) supervising an assistant guide or other person employed by the 

contracting giude; [A GAME MANAGEMENT UNIT ADJACENT TO AND 

SHARING A COMMON BORDER WITH THE UNIT IN WHICH THE 

CONTRACTED HUNT IS TAKING PLACE; OR 

(C) A LOCATION THAT IS NO FURTHER THAN 50 MILES FROM 

THE NEAREST BOUNDARY OF AN AREA OR UNIT DESCRIBED IN (A) OR (B) 

OF THIS PARAGRAPH; AND] 

(2) while outside of the field if [PERFORMING THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHILE 

IN THE FIELD AND PRESENT IN A LOCATION LISTED IN (1) OF THIS SUBSECTION, 

IS PRACTICABLE; FOR PURPOSES OF THIS PARAGRAPH, PLANNING, DIRECTING, 

AND MONITORING THE CONTRACTED HUNT IS NOT PRACTICABLE IF THE 

CONTRACTING REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER CANNOT COMMUNICATE IN 

PERSON, COMMUNICATE PERSONALLY BY TELEPHONE, OR COMMUNICATE 

PERSONALLY BY RADIO WITH THE ASSISTANT GUIDE, CLASS-A ASSISTANT 

GUIDE, OR REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER INVOLVED IN THE CONTRACTED 

HUNT.] 

(A) a non-contracting, supervising registered guide-outfitter or a 

class-A assistant guide is in the field for a reason/ a purpose in accordance with AS 

08.54.620(b)(3) or under the provisions of (f) of this section. 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

7 

 (B) conducting activities set out under (f)(2) of this section. 

(3) The contracting guide must maintain daily communication with the 

supervising guide personally and be readily available for communication at all times by 

telephone, radio, or satellite device; or 

12 AAC 75.240 is amended by adding a new subsection to read: 

(j) For the purposes of this section, “current season” means a period of consecutive or 

nearly consecutive hunts. 

12 AAC 75.250(b) is amended to read: 

(b) A registered guide-outfitter who contracts to guide a hunt and who is participating in 

a hunt as required in AS 08.54.630(b)(3) shall 

(1) attempt to be in communication daily, either personally or through an agent, 

with the assistant guide, who is in the field with the client; [, AT LEAST ONCE DURING THE 

HUNT IF THE HUNT IS LONGER THAN FIVE DAYS.] 

(2) provide the client with the contracting registered guide’s contact 

information prior to the hunt; and 

(3) provide each client with access to an electronic communication device 

capable of calling or sending a message to the contracting registered guide. The device may 

be held by an assistant guide during the hunt and made available to the client upon 

request. 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

8 

12 AAC 75.250(c) is amended to read: 

(c) In this section, “communication” includes in-person contact, radio contact, telephone 

contact, text messaging, email, and signaling. 

12 AAC 75.250(d)(2) is amended to read: 

(2) [EITHER PERSONALLY OR THROUGH A CLASS-A ASSISTANT 

GUIDE, AN ASSISTANT GUIDE, OR A LICENSED TRANSPORTER,] transport or arrange 

for the transportation of the client into and out of the field at the planned date, time, and 

location, unless prevented by weather, mechanical problems, or other safety concerns; and 

Authority: AS 08.54.600 AS 08.54.620  AS 08.54.710 

12 AAC 75.400(a) is amended to read: 

(a) Each transporter activity report required by AS 08.54.650 must be on a form provided 

by the department, titled Transporter Activity Report, dated December 2024 [OCTOBER 2012], 

and adopted by reference. This form is established by the board for review of the information 

required by AS 08.54.650. 

Authority: AS 08.54.600 AS 08.54.660 AS 08.54.760 

AS 08.54.650 

12 AAC 75 is amended by adding a new section to read: 

12 AAC 75.405. Marking of aircraft and vessels used by guides and transporters (a) 

aircraft used by a guide or transporter shall be marked with 12-inch registration numbers. 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

9 

Characters must be formed by solid lines 1/6 as thick as the character is high in accordance with 

CFR 14. Part 45 Subpart C. 

(b) Any vessel or boat used by a guide or transporter shall be marked with an activity 

identification decal. 

(1) Decal must be clearly displayed on each side of the vessel. They do not have 

to be permanently affixed to the vessel; they can be placed on plexiglass, plywood, or metal for 

easy placement and removal. 

(2) For each vessel required to display an identification sticker, a set will be 

provided by the division, one for each side of the vessel to be placed in an unobstructed location 

easily visible. 

(3) Services provided under registered guide-outfitter statutes require 

identification decals yellow in color. 

(4) Services provided under transporter statutes require identification decals red in 

color. 

(5) Identification decals which become worn or discolored shall be replaced at a 

fee established by the board through the division. 

(6) Decal is not intended to be tracked by vessel, therefore, a set of decals can be 

utilized for multiple vessels or boats. 

(7) For a person who possess both a transporter and guide license, the color of 

decal should be used for whichever is the majority of the overall service being provided. 

(8) A temporary printable decal is authorized upon notification of change to the 

division. 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

10 

12 AAC 75.440 is amended by adding two new subsections to read: 

(e) if permitted to advertise or sell big game transportation services under AS 08.54, a 

transporter may not advertise or sell big game transportation services to be conducted solely on 

tidelands; a transporter may not provide big game transportation services on tidelands or below 

mean high water mark in fresh water, except on those tidelands and below mean high water mark 

lands that are immediately adjacent to uplands on which the transporter’s clients are legally 

permitted to hunt. 

(f) in this section "tidelands" has the meaning given in AS 38.05.965. 

12 AAC 75 is amended by adding a new section to read: 

12 AAC 75.455 Helicopter Use (a) A licensee or entity holding any type of license 

issued by the board for the provision of services in the state under the terms of AS 08 54 and this 

chapter is prohibited from the use of a helicopter in any manner for the purposes of providing, 

assisting, or enabling those services. 

(b) This section does not apply to the transportation of a hunter, hunting gear, or game 

during an emergency rescue operation in a life-threatening situation or to remove a wrecked 

aircraft from the field. 

12 AAC is amended by adding a new section to read: 

12 AAC 75.655. Boat-based transporters with living accommodations on saltwater 

(a) A licensed transporter may, under AS 08.54.650(b), provide overnight 

accommodations to big game hunters on a boat with permanent living quarters located on salt 

water. In providing this service, the transporter 



Register           ,                   2024 PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 

11 

(1) may only provide overnight accommodations to clients and crew up to the 

number of people intended to be accommodated in permanent berths as available on the boat; 

(2) shall ensure that a captain is onboard the boat while clients are either onboard 

the boat or in the field. For the purposes of this section, any boat used to transport clients to and 

from the shore must be operated by a captain. There must also be a licensed captain that remains 

on the larger boat during the transportation of clients to and from shore. 

(b) for the purposes of AS 08.54.650(b) “boat with permanent living quarters” means a 

boat that has 

(1) permanent berths intended exclusively for sleeping that are immovable, and 

not contained in a detachable pod, container, or other structure; 

(2) a head that contains a toilet, shower and sink appropriate for daily bathing and 

sanitation; and 

(3) a galley that includes a permanently installed cook stove, dining area, 

refrigerator, and sink with hot running water large enough for sanitation for the intended 

occupancy of the boat. 

(c) for the purposes of this section “captain” means a minimum of US Coast Guard license as an 

Operator of Uninspected Passenger Vessel. 



Big Game Commercial Services Board 
12/10-11/24 Meeting Minutes Excerpt for New Regulations Project 

3. UVC Sharing 
Brief Discussion: Chairman Bloomquist said that there was some confusion on whether or not an agent of 

an RGO could put the clients of that RGO into the annual hunting permit drawing, thru 
ADF&G, using their Unique Verification Code (UVC). He said that there were some different 
interpretations of it over the years and that the division needed some clarification. 
Technically, he said, that UVC codes belong to the RGO and should not be shared with 
clients. He said that there had been cases in the past where a client would use an RGOs 
UVC code on an application for an agreed upon area, but that the client would also use the 
code for other areas and then shop a winning draw permit to guides in those areas. Mr. 
Boniek asked what the original intent of the UVC was. Chairman Bloomquist said that it 
was to not have a client applying in an area outside of an agreed area that they had with 
an RGO. He said that the regulation states, “Unique verification codes can only be utilized 
by the contracting registered or master guide who is applying clients for a drawing hunt 
permit.” He suggested going to public comment to get opinions on the topic. 

4. Public Comment 
Brief Discussion: Mr. Bay created a list of attendees that wanted to provide public comment. The board 

began public comment. 
Jason Bunch Jason Bunch, an RGO, began his testimony on the UVC code issue. He said that the original 

intent of the UVC code was to ensure an RGO was the person using the code and entering 
their clients in the drawing. That ensured that an RGO would have a contract with a client 
and that the RGO knew the people he was putting into the draw were the people he was 
communicating with. At that time, he said there were a lot of communication issues 
regarding booking agents applying clients into a draw on behalf of an RGO, but that the 
RGO had never actually talked to the client, so there were a lot of breach of contract type 
scenarios where the guide promised things that he did not actually promise. It was the 
booking agent who had promised them. He said that a long time ago, before the UVC code, 
nonhunters applied people in the draw in hopes of saving an animal because they never 
planned on sending hunters into the field. He said that the UVC code was created to show 
that there is an agreement between an RGO and a client, including a written contract 
between each of them, so that the permits go to the correct people who draw them. He 
said that the UVC code was also created as an easy way to audit the drawing, to ensure 
that all nonresidents applied in the drawing have a guide-client agreement in place and not 
throwing a wrench in the system. He said that, while he does not think the board has a leg 
to stand on regarding an agent acting on an RGO’s behalf and using a UVC code to submit 
an application in the drawing, it was not the intent for it to happen. With nothing left, the 
board thanked Mr. Bunch for his testimony. 

Dan Montgomery Dan Montgomery, an MGO, said that he had a client who applied himself in the drawing 
and then sent him a guide-client contract. He said that the client put his guide license 
number as the UVC code, and it accepted the application. His understanding was that the 



draw permit, if pulled, would be thrown out. He said that the board has issued permits for 
the last five years to people who were not signed up for the area for the hunt year. He said 
that the board should not be telling people that they can use the same UVC code if they 
are not signed up for the following year. He said that the board also let people sign up for 
areas after they had drawn permits. He said that it should not be allowed and that 
everybody should have to follow the same rules. Chairman Bloomquist said that his 
interpretation of the regulation was that people could not receive or use a UVC code 
unless they were who are “registered in a guide use area located in the hunt area the year 
the application is made and the years the permit is valid,” per 12 AAC 75.260(d). Mr. Bay 
said that the regulation is going to have to be amended because it also says that UVC codes 
are good until they expire, are withdrawn or amended, which is why he had been telling 
RGOs that they can use their previous codes as long as their registration had not expired. 
Chairman Bloomquist asked Mr. Bunch, the previous chairman of the board, if he had any 
information on the topic. Mr. Bunch said that the regulation needs amended. He said that 
another portion of the regulation reads as, “Unique verification codes will be current until 
the associated guide use area registration expires or is withdrawn or amended,” which 
means that someone on the backend of a registration could technically still use their UVC 
codes from the previous year because their registration had not yet expired. He said that it 
is a loophole until the regulation is amended. The board understood his explanation. 
Chairman Bloomquist said that he already has a way to amend the regulation and that they 
would address it at a later time. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. 
Hedrich for his testimony. 

Dick Rohrer Dick Rohrer, an MGO, began testimony on the UVC code issue. He said that it originally 
came out of Kodiak, and was originally called a guide-client agreement, which the staff in 
Kodiak checked to make sure any nonresident applications for brown bear permits 
included proper registration. He cautioned any guides from giving out their UVC codes. 
With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Rohrer for his testimony. 

Derrick Campbell Derrick Campbell, an RGO, said that one of the hot topics in all the meetings lately has 
been state land guide concessions. He said that something that is helpful and often 
overlooked for guides and clients is keeping the process for becoming a registered guide-
outfitter as rigorous as possible. He said that there have been record numbers of RGO 
applicants recently and that while it is good for the board’s budget it is not good for the 
industry. He believes that the board’s budget would still be in a good position with a high 
number of assistant guides. He said that he felt a great accomplishment when he received 
his RGO license and that the board should hold that type of license on a high pedestal. He 
suggested the board move back to requiring five successful species-specific guided hunts of 
an animal in order to guide for them and that he’s against oral boards, especially if 
applicants do not have to travel to Alaska. He suggested taking away the open-book 
material of the RGO written exam, bringing back the 125 days in the field experience 
requirement, and requiring an assistant guide to have three years of experience. He said 
that the amount of client recommendations required for getting an RGO license should 
also be raised. Chairman Bloomquist clarified that the board still requires 125 days in the 
field experience and for an assistant guide having three years of experience. 

On the UVC code issue, he said that the board’s website says, “UVC’s are confidential and 
guides are encouraged to register their hunters in the drawings to protect themselves from 



violating AS 08.54.720 Unlawful Acts.” He said that he has never shared his UVC codes but 
would like to have some assurance that he will not get in any trouble for doing so. With 
nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Campbell for his testimony. 

Matt Snyder 

Off Record: 10:40 a.m. 

Matt Snyder, an MGO, began testimony on the UVC code issue. He said that he thinks 
nonresidents should be able to apply themselves into the drawing because it takes a lot of 
time to apply clients, especially when you have a large number of them. Chairman 
Bloomquist said that unfortunately Mr. Snyder was in an area where it pays to have more 
clients in the drawing, which requires a lot of foot work. With nothing left to discuss, the 
board thanked Mr. Snyder for his time. The board took a break. 

New Regulation Project: 12 AAC 75.260(d) 
Brief Discussion: Chairman Bloomquist said that they needed to amend 12 AAC 75.260(d) because of the 

UVC code issue they discussed earlier. He suggested amending the second to last sentence 
in the regulation to read as the following: 

 Unique verification codes will be current until the day before the first day of the 
Alaska Department of Fish and Game drawing application period in the year the 
associated guide use area registration expires or is withdrawn or amended. 

This would fix the UVC code issue they currently have with RGOs being able use a UVC 
code in their final year of registration without actually being registered in the unit the 
following year. The board agreed with the change. 

Motion: Move to initiate a regulations project regarding an amendment to 12 AAC 75.260(d) by 
approving the following language for public comment, unless substantive changes are 
made by the regulations specialist or Department of Law: 

 A contracting registered or master guide who is signing the hunt contract, and 
who intends to apply a client for a drawing hunt permit for a hunt conducted 
under regulations required under AS 16.05, shall obtain a unique verification code 
for each guide use area in which a unique verification code is required from the 
department before entering an application for the client. Unique verification 
codes will only be issued to registered or master guides who are registered in a 
guide use area located in the hunt area the year the application is made and the 
years the permit is valid; except a contracting guide may receive a code and apply 
a client in a new concession area in which the permit for the concession is 
authorized but not valid until the year of the hunt as long as the concessionaire 
registers for the guide use area before providing services. Unique verification 
codes will be current until the day before the first day of the Alaska Department 
of Fish and Game drawing application period in the year the associated guide 
use area registration expires or is withdrawn or amended. Unique verification 



codes can only be utilized by the contracting registered or master guide who is 
applying clients for a drawing hunt permit.

 (First: Boniek; Second: Nordlum). 
Recorded Votes: Buist - Yes Flores - Yes 

Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Yes 

Lorring - Absent 

New Regulation Project: Repeal 12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A)/Amend 12 AAC 75.100(a)(1) 
Brief Discussion: 

Off Record: 3:36 p.m. 

Chairman Bloomquist said that there might be a way around requiring the board to do in-
person practical exams by changing the exam requirements written in regulation. He said 
that nothing in the board’s statutes or regulations states that the practical exam has to be 
in-person and that it can be a written exam. He asked Mr. Bunch, who was running the 
exams workgroup, if he had any ideas on the topic. Mr. Bunch said that the board has to 
first look at the board’s statutes, which requires the board to prepare and grade an exam 
and provide for administration of an examination but does not establish the board’s 
authority for prerequisites of an examination, which can be written in regulation. He said 
that the regulation covering what an RGO examination applicant must pass, 12 AAC 
75.110(a)(1), requires passage of a qualification examination, which includes a practical 
examination, which must cover the following: 

A. Trophy judging of actual antlers and horns 
B. Aging of animals 
C. Sexing of mountain goats and bears 
D. Caping a big game animal; for this portion of the examination, the applicant must 

provide a visual recording of the applicant caping a big gam animal. 

He said that the workgroup’s suggestion is to repeal 12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A), the trophy 
judging of actual antlers and horns requirement, and instead replace it with a prerequisite 
requirement for an applicant to have an official measurer certification from SCI or Boone 
and Crockett under 12 AAC 75.100(a)(1). The board took a break and would be getting a 
quick update from the APHA before moving forward with this discussion. 

New Regulation Project: Repeal 12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A)/Amend 12 AAC 75.100(a)(1) - (continued) 
Brief Discussion: 
On Record: 3:46 p.m. 

The board continued their regulations project discussion. After discussion, the board 
agreed to the prerequisite but added Pope and Young or the equivalent as additional 
options. They also decided to add two other prerequisites, which included adding 
requirements to pass ADF&G’s Hunter Education Course with a 90% or higher and 
certification as a Wilderness First Responder (WFR) or higher. Chairman Bloomquist said 
that the Hunter Education Course is a simple and quick online course that covers a lot of 
simple things guides should know in the field. He said that the WFR course is needed 
because a lot of guides do not know how to provide adequate first aid in the field. 

Motion: Move to initiate a regulations project regarding an amendment to 12 AAC 75.100(a)(1) and 
a repeal to 12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A) by approving the following language for public 



comment, unless substantive changes are made by the regulations specialist or 
Department of Law: 

12 AAC 75.100(a)(1) 

(a) An applicant for a registered guide-outfitter license who is applying under 
AS 08.54.610(a)(3)(A) must submit, 
(1) at least 120 days before the date of the next scheduled registered guide-

outfitter examination, 
(A) the applicable fees required in 12 AAC 02.230; 
(B) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 

the applicant must indicate if the applicant will be contracting to provide big 
game commercial services during the licensing period for which the 
applicant is applying; 

(C) a list of hunters for whom the applicant has provided big game
hunting services in compliance with AS 08.54.610(a)(8); 

(D) a written certification by the applicant on a form provided by the
department certifying the applicant’s 
(i) practical field experience as required in AS 08.54.610(a)(2); 
(ii) capability to perform “essential duties associated with

guiding and outfitting” as defined in 12 AAC 75.990; and 
(iii) successful experience guiding sheep, moose, brown bear,

mountain goat, and caribou hunts, if the applicant is seeking licensure for 
one of these species; the applicant must have been involved in a minimum 
of three harvests on a guided hunt for each of these listed species in order to 
be licensed for that species; 

(E) a signed statement from the applicant certifying that the
applicant meets the eligibility requirements in AS 08.54.605; 

(F) a form completed by the applicant listing the dates that the
applicant hunted in the state and certifying that the applicant meets the 
requirements in AS 08.54.610(a)(5); and 

(G) the applicant’s license number and dates of licensure as a
class-A assistant guide, class-A assistant guide-outfitter, assistant guide, 
or assistant guide-outfitter in the state; 

(H) a passing score from the Department of Fish and Game’s
Hunter Education Course with a 90 percent or higher; 

(I) a Wilderness First Responder certification or higher;
(J) an official measurer certification from Safari Club

International, Boone and Crockett, Pope or Young, or the equivalent. 

12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A) 

(a) To be eligible for a registered guide-outfitter license, an applicant
must pass the 

(1) qualification examination, which includes a practical examination 
covering 
(A) [TROPHY JUDGING OF ACTUAL ANTLERS AND HORNS;] 

(First: Boniek; Second: Lorring). 
Recorded Votes: Buist - Yes Flores - Yes 

Boniek - Yes Kunder - Yes 

Bloomquist - Yes Nordlum - Yes 



Lorring - Yes 



DATE: 
TO: 
THROUGH: 
FROM: 
SUBJECT: 

January 23, 2026 
GUI - Board of Big Game Commercial Services 
Jennifer Summers, Senior Investigator 
Dannie Kerfeld, Investigator 
Probation Report for the January 28, 2026 Meeting. 

The following is a complete list of individuals on probation for this Board that are in compliance with their Board agreements.

   Name Case Number Start of Probation End of Probation 
   Preston Cavner 2021-000623-PRB 07/02/2025 07/02/2030 

   Gilbert Huntington 2022-000797 09/05/2023 09/05/2028 

   Michael Vanstrom 2023-000199 12/06/2023 12/06/2028 

   Zachary  Shrum 2023-000998-Prb 02/29/2024 02/28/2026 

   Darwin Vander Esch 2024-000001-Prb 03/27/2024 03/27/2026 

   Justin Shaffer 2024-000018-Prb 03/28/2025 03/28/2029 

   Jeffrey Berg 2022-001145-Prb 03/27/2024 03/27/2027 

   Peter Michaloski 2024-000359-PRB 08/13/2024 08/13/2026 

   ALBERT FURNEY 2024-000067-PRB 11/14/2025 11/14/2028 

   Daniel  Paull 2024-000068-PRB 11/14/2025 11/14/2028 

   Clayton Roberts 2024-001140-Prb 02/19/2025 02/21/2026 

   Shawn Stone 2024-000900-Prb 02/19/2025 02/19/2026 

   Joseph Romano 2025-000126-Prb 07/18/2025 07/18/2027 

   Michael  Meekin 2025-000621-Prb 10/01/2025 10/01/2027 

   Shay Rosser 2025-000403-Prb 12/10/2025 12/10/2027 

   Judah Pernell 2025-000235-Prb 12/10/2025 12/10/2028 

   Arno Krumm 2025-000039-Prb 12/10/2025 12/10/2028 

   Nicolas Pierskalla 2025-000255-Prb 07/18/2025 07/18/2026 

PROBATION REPORT 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND 
PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

550 West Seventh Avenue, Suite 1500 
Anchorage, AK 99501-3567 

Main: 907.269.8160 
Toll free fax: 907.269.8195 

The following information was compiled as a Probation report to the Board for the period of September 26, 2025 thru January 23, 
2026; This report includes probationers who are in compliance with their agreements; non compliant probationers and probationer 
requests to the Board. 

There are currently Thirty-four (34) licensee’s on probation as of the date of this report. Since the last probation report, Three (3) 
licensee’s were released from probation. 

GOVERNOR Mike Dunleavy 

January 23, 2026 
Probation Report Page 1 of  



   Gabe King 2025-001048-Prb 12/10/2025 12/10/2027 

   Peter Barela 2025-001034-Prb 12/10/2025 12/10/2028 

   Hal La Pointe 2024-001025-Prb 02/19/2025 02/19/2026 

   Jarod Kloostra 2024-001083-Prb 02/19/2025 02/19/2026 

The following is a complete list of individuals on probation for this Board that are not in compliance with their Board agreements. 

   Name Case Number Start of Probation End of Probation Disposition Date 
   Joel  Brewer 2023-000980-Prb 02/29/2024 02/28/2026 01/09/2026 

   Daniel  Graham 2023-001192-Prb 03/27/2024 03/27/2027 01/09/2026 

   Paul Ritz 2023-001103-Prb 02/19/2025 02/19/2026 01/09/2026 

   Gary King, Jr 2021-000627-Prb 02/29/2024 02/28/2027 01/12/2026 

   Douglas ZWEIFEL 2021-001082-PRB 07/18/2024 07/18/2026 01/12/2026 

   Craig HILL 2022-000222-Prb 12/16/2025 12/16/2030 01/12/2026 

   Rafe Oliphant 2024-000917-Prb 02/19/2025 02/21/2026 01/20/2026 

   Ryan Schliesser 2025-000311-Prb 07/18/2025 07/18/2027 01/20/2026 

   Tracy  Trudell 2024-000212-Prb 10/01/2025 10/01/2028 01/20/2026 

   Alaska Big Game 
Professionals, LLC 

2024-000212-Prb 10/01/2025 10/01/2028 01/20/2026 

   Jeffrey Peterson 2025-000676-Prb 10/01/2025 10/01/2027 01/20/2026 

   Ricko DeWilde 2025-000108-Prb 10/01/2025 10/01/2028 01/20/2026 

The following is a complete list of individuals on probation for this Board that are suspended. 

   Name Case Number Start of Probation End of Probation Disposition Date 

The following is a complete list of individuals on Non-Disciplinary Consent Agreements (Monitoring Status) for this Board. All 
individuals are in compliance with their agreements. 

   Name Case Number Start of Probation End of Probation Disposition Date 

The following were released after probation completion. 

   Name Case Number Start of Probation End of Probation 
   Yote Robertson 2024-000934-PRB 12/11/2024 12/11/2025 

   Fredrick O'Hearn 2024-001102-PRB 12/11/2024 12/11/2025 

   John Walker 2020-001047 09/03/2021 09/03/2026 

Board Requests: 
GRAHAM, Daniel; 2023-001192-Prb; Request for VSOL 

END OF REPORT 

January 23, 2026 
Probation Report Page 2 of  



DDepartmentt off Commerce,, Community, 
andd Economicc Development 

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND 
PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

550 West Seventh Avenue, Suite 1500 
Anchorage, AK 99501-3567 

Main: 907.269.8160 
Fax: 907.269.8156 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

THRU: 

FROM: 

RE: 

January 27, 2026 

Big Game Commercial Services Board 

Erika Prieksat, Chief Investigator

Lee Strout, Investigator

Investigative Report for the January 28, 2026 Meeting 

The following information was compiled as an investigative report to the Board for the period of December 05, 2025 thru 
January 27, 2026; this report includes cases, complaints, and intake matters handled since the last report. 

Matters opened by the Paralegals in Anchorage and Juneau, regarding continuing education audits and license action 
resulting from those matters are covered in this report. 

OPEN - 65 

Case Number Violation Type Case Status Status Date 

2026-000038 Criminal action - conviction Complaint 01/13/2026 

2025-001114 Criminal action - conviction Investigation 12/30/2025 

ASSISTANT GUIDE 

2025-000685 License Application Review/Referral Complaint 07/24/2025 

2025-001025 Probation violation Complaint 10/30/2025 

2025-001215 Criminal action - conviction Complaint 12/22/2025 

2024-000145 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

CLASS A ASSISTANT GUIDE 

nvestig 

r 



2025-001107 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Investigation 12/31/2025 

2024-000970 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

MASTER GUIDE-OUTFITTER 

2020-000135 Criminal action - no conviction Complaint 03/04/2020 

2023-000977 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 10/09/2023 

2023-000978 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 10/17/2023 

2024-000340 Violation of License Regulation Complaint 05/13/2024 

2025-000723 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Complaint 08/18/2025 

2025-000838 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Complaint 01/26/2026 

2025-000945 Criminal action - conviction Complaint 10/01/2025 

2025-001183 Criminal action - conviction Complaint 12/16/2025 

2022-000615 Criminal action - conviction Investigation 07/30/2024 

2023-000008 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 04/03/2024 

2025-001032 Criminal action - conviction Investigation 01/07/2026 

2022-000100 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

2022-000577 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER 

2023-000270 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 04/03/2023 

2023-000900 Criminal action - no conviction Complaint 08/21/2023 

2024-000010 Criminal action - no conviction Complaint 01/04/2024 

2024-000795 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Complaint 08/29/2024 

2024-000952 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Complaint 11/06/2024 

2024-001048 Violation of License Regulation Complaint 12/09/2024 

2025-000925 Criminal action - no conviction Complaint 09/24/2025 

2025-000929 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Complaint 09/30/2025 

2025-000938 Criminal action - conviction Complaint 09/29/2025 

2025-001105 Criminal action - no conviction Complaint 11/19/2025 

2025-001113 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Complaint 11/20/2025 

2025-001182 Criminal action - conviction Complaint 12/16/2025 

2022-000244 Criminal action - no conviction Investigation 06/09/2025 

Investigative Report to Big Game Commercial Services Board 
January 27, 2026 
Page 2 



2022-000686 Criminal action - no conviction Investigation 07/23/2025 

2023-000918 Criminal action - no conviction Investigation 02/04/2025 

2023-000974 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 07/23/2025 

2023-000983 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 07/23/2025 

2023-001145 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 07/02/2024 

2023-001197 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Investigation 07/02/2024 

2024-000162 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Investigation 07/23/2025 

2024-000469 Fraud or misrepresentation Investigation 07/23/2025 

2024-000695 License Application Review/Referral Investigation 08/19/2025 

2024-000803 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Investigation 07/23/2025 

2024-000854 Criminal action - conviction Investigation 08/20/2025 

2024-001018 Criminal action - no conviction Investigation 01/14/2026 

2025-000383 Criminal action - conviction Investigation 05/21/2025 

2025-000617 Criminal action - conviction Investigation 11/06/2025 

2025-000856 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Investigation 01/13/2026 

2025-001006 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Investigation 01/14/2026 

2021-000624 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

2022-000406 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

2022-000407 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

2023-000151 Violation of licensing regulation Criminal Case Pending 

2023-000158 Violation of licensing regulation Criminal Case Pending 

2023-001042 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

2024-001009 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

2024-001010 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

TRANSPORTER 

2023-001034 Criminal action - no conviction Complaint 11/22/2023 

2023-001048 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 10/18/2023 

2023-001049 Violation of licensing regulation Complaint 10/17/2023 

2019-000483 Criminal action - no conviction Investigation 04/06/2022 

2019-000589 Falsified application Investigation 04/06/2022 

Investigative Report to Big Game Commercial Services Board 
January 27, 2026 
Page 3 



Closed - 25 

Case # Violation Type Case Status Closure Closed 

2023-000705 Violation of licensing regulation Investigation 12/11/2024 

2025-000573 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 

2026-000026 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/12/2026 Review Complete 

2026-000029 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/15/2026 Review Complete 

2026-000030 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/15/2026 Review Complete 

2026-000048 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/20/2026 Review Complete 

2025-000875 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Complaint 12/10/2025 Review Complete 

2024-001066 Criminal action - no 
conviction 

Closed-Investigation 12/11/2025 License Action 

2025-000235 Criminal action - no 
conviction 

Closed-Investigation 12/12/2025 License Action 

ASSISTANT GUIDE 

2025-001157 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 12/16/2025 Review Complete 

2026-000017 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/15/2026 Review Complete 

2026-000020 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/16/2026 Review Complete 

GUIDE-OUTFITTER 

2026-000016 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/21/2026 Review Complete 

MASTER GUIDE-OUTFITTER 

2025-000949 Violation of Profession 
Statute or Regulation 

Closed-Intake 12/15/2025 Incomplete Complaint 

2025-001216 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/15/2026 Review Complete 

2026-000027 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/15/2026 Review Complete 

2026-000028 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/13/2026 Review Complete 

REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER 

Investigative Report to Big Game Commercial Services Board 
January 27, 2026 
Page 4 



END OF REPORT 

2026-000031 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Intake 01/15/2026 Review Complete 

2024-001199 Criminal action - no 
conviction 

Closed-Complaint 01/15/2026 No Action - No 
Violation 

2026-000049 License Application 
Review/Referral 

Closed-Complaint 01/26/2026 Review Complete 

2025-000039 Criminal action - no 
conviction 

Closed-Investigation 12/11/2025 License Action 

2025-000403 Falsified application Closed-Investigation 12/12/2025 License Action 

2025-001034 Criminal action - no 
conviction 

Closed-Investigation 12/11/2025 License Action 

2025-001064 Violation of Profession 
Statute or Regulation 

Closed-Intake 12/15/2025 Incomplete Complaint 

2025-000721 Financial Scam Closed-Complaint 12/10/2025 No Action - No 
Violation 

2025-001037 Violation of Profession 
Statute or Regulation 

Closed-Complaint 12/10/2025 No Action - No 
Violation 

2025-001048 Violation of Profession 
Statute or Regulation 

Closed-Investigation 12/11/2025 License Action 

TRANSPORTER 

Investigative Report to Big Game Commercial Services Board 
January 27, 2026 
Page 5 


	Structure Bookmarks
	State of Alaska Department of Commerce, Community & Economic Development Division of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing Big Game Commercial Services Board 
	7KLVLVD'UDIW'RFXPHQW 
	)HEUXDU\
	dƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇϭϬ͕ϮϬϮϲĂƚϵ͗ϬϬථD<^dƚŽdƵĞƐĚĂǇ͕&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇϭϬ͕ϮϬϮϲĂƚ ϱ͗ϬϬථWD<^d 
	Meeting Details: 
	All board and commission members and staff should be familiar with the Executive Branch Ethics Act procedures outlined below. 
	Every board or commission subject to the Ethics Act has several ethics supervisors designated by statute. 
	The Ethics Act requires members of boards and commissions to disclose: 
	The executive director of the board or commission and its staff, as state employees, must also disclose: 
	The procedural requirements for disclosures by members are set out in AS 39.52.220 and 9 AAC 52.120. One goal of these provisions is to help members avoid violations of the Ethics Act. The procedures provide the opportunity for members to seek review of matters in advance of taking action to ensure that actions taken will be consistent with the Act. 
	Members must declare potential conflicts and other matters that may violate the Ethics Act  and . 
	 Members must identify actual and potential conflicts orally at the board or commission's public meeting  of participating in deliberations or taking any official action on the matter. 
	In addition to an oral disclosure at a board or commission meeting, members’ disclosures must be made in writing. 
	Potential conflicts may be partially addressed in advance of a board or commission's public meeting based on the published meeting agenda or other board or commission activity. 
	 When a potential conflict is declared by a member for the public record, the following procedure must be followed: 
	, the same procedures are followed. If possible, the chair should forward a confidential written notice of potential violation to the Office of the Governor for a determination in advance of the board or commission meeting. If the declaration is first 
	A member's interest in a state grant, contract, lease or loan and receipt of gifts are disclosed by filling out the appropriate disclosure form and submitting the form to the chair for approval. The disclosure forms are found on the . 
	Ethics disclosures of the executive director or staff are made in writing to the appropriate DES (chair for the executive director and the executive director for staff). 
	Following receipt of a written notice of potential violation, the DES investigates, if necessary, and makes a written determination whether a violation of the Ethics Act could exist or will occur. A DES may seek advice from the Attorney General. If feasible, the DES shall reassign duties to cure a potential violation or direct divestiture or removal by the employee of the personal or financial interests giving rise to the potential violation. 
	 The DES also reviews other ethics disclosures and either approves them or determines what action must be taken to avoid a violation of the Act. In addition to the disclosures of certain gifts and interests in the listed state matters, state employees must disclose all outside employment or services for compensation. 
	Any person may report a potential violation of the Ethics Act by a board or commission member or its staff to the appropriate DES or file a complaint alleging actual violations with the Attorney General. 
	Designated ethics supervisors must submit copies of notices of potential violations received and the corresponding determinations to the Attorney General for review by the state ethics attorney as part of the quarterly report required by the Ethics Act. 
	If the state ethics attorney disagrees with a reported determination, the attorney will advise the DES of that finding. If the ethics attorney finds that there was a violation, the member who committed the violation is not liable if he or she fully disclosed all relevant facts reasonably necessary to the ethics supervisor's or commission's determination and acted consistent with the determination. 
	A DES or board or commission may make a  to the Attorney General for an opinion regarding the application of the Ethics Act. In practice, the Attorney General, through the state ethics attorney, also provides  to designated ethics supervisors, especially when time constraints prevent the preparation of timely written opinions. 
	It is the obligation of each board or commission member, as well as the staff, to ensure that the public's business is conducted in a manner that is consistent with the standards set out in the Ethics Act. We hope this summary assists you in ensuring that your obligations are met. 
	6/14 
	The Attorney General and Department of Law staff may not provide legal advice to private citizens or organizations. Please contact an attorney if you need legal advice. The  or your local bar association may be able to assist you in locating a lawyer. 
	Alaska Department of Law 
	1031 West 4th Avenue, Suite 200 
	Anchorage, AK 99501 
	attorney.general@alaska.gov 
	Phone: (907) 269-5100 | Fax: (907) 276-3697 
	TTY: 907-258-9161 
	COPYRIGHT © 
	TO: 
	, Designated Ethics Supervisor 
	(Identify Your Department, Agency, Public Corporation, Board, Commission) 
	I request advice regarding the application of the Executive Branch Ethics Act (AS 39.52.010 - .960) to my situation.  The situation involves the following: 
	I believe the following provisions of the Ethics Act may apply to my situation: 
	  If the circumstances I described above may result in a violation of AS 39.52.110 - .190, I intend that this request serve as my disclosure of the matter in accordance with AS 39.52.210 or AS 39.52.220. 
	I certify to the best of my knowledge that my statement is true, correct, and complete.  In addition to any other penalty or punishment that may apply, the submission of a false statement is punishable under AS 11.56.200 - AS 11.56.240. 
	(Signature) 
	(Date) 
	(Printed Name) 
	(Division, Board, Commission) 
	(Position Title) 
	(Location) 
	Designated Ethics Supervisor:  Provide a copy of your written determination to the employee advising whether action is necessary under AS 39.52.210 or AS 39.52.220, and send a copy of the determination and disclosure to the attorney general with your quarterly report. 
	Revised 2012 
	TO: 
	(Agency, Public Corporation, Board, 
	This disclosure reports receipt of a gift with value in excess of $150.00 by me or my immediate family member, as required by AS 39.52.130(b) or (f). 
	(If you answer “No” to both questions, you do not need to report this gift.  If the answer to either question is “Yes,” or if you are not sure, you must complete this form and provide it to your designated ethics supervisor.) 
	The gift is 
	Identify gift giver by full name, title, and organization or relationship, if any: 
	Describe event or occasion when gift was received or other circumstance explaining the reason for the gift: 
	My estimate of its value is $ 
	The date of receipt was 
	The gift was received by a member of my family. Who? 
	If you checked “Yes” to question 2 above, explain the official action you may take that affects the giver (attach additional page, if necessary)
	I certify to the best of my knowledge that my statement is true, correct, and complete.  In addition to any other penalty or punishment that may apply, the submission of a false statement is punishable under AS 11.56.200  - AS 11.56.240. 
	(Signature) 
	(Date) 
	(Printed Name) 
	(Division) 
	(Position Title) 
	Approve 
	Disapproved
	Ethics Supervisor Determination: 
	(Location) 
	Designated Ethics Supervisor
	(Date) 
	Revised 2012 
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
	These draft minutes were prepared by staff of the Division of Corporations, 
	Business and Professional Licensing. They have not been reviewed or approved by the Board. 
	By authority of AS 08.01.070(2) and in compliance with the provision of AS 44.62, Article 6, a scheduled meeting (teleconference) of the Big Game Commercial Services Board was held on December 10, 2025, at 550 W. 7th Ave, 1st Floor, Anchorage, AK. 
	Date: 
	December 10, 2025 
	T 
	Time: 
	9:00 a.m. (9:05 a.m.) 
	T 
	Location: 
	Online teleconference ran from the Robert Atwood Building: 550 W. 7thuilding: 550 W. 7th Ave, 1st Floor, Anchorage, AK Ave, 1st 
	FT 
	Board 
	Aaron Bloomquist, Keegan McCarthy, Martin Boniek, Flores, DaveDave Lorring, Lor  Larry Kunder, Brianna Hauch, Robert Mumford niek, Mike Flores, 
	ike Flore 
	FT 
	Board Absent: 
	Clay Nordlum 
	AF 
	Division/SOA Staff Present: 
	Thomas Bay (Executive Administrator), Janet Brown (Occupational Licensing Examiner), Sylvan Robb (Director), Lee Strout (Investigator), Jenninnini Summers ( (Senior Investigator)Senior Invest strator), Janet Brown (Occu
	strato net Brown (O 
	RA 
	Present from the Public: 
	Hank Flatow, Dan Valentine,ne, Jake Steve Perrins, Steve Perrins II, Derrick Campbell, Arrow Outfitters, John Martinez, Jordan Whatley, Michael Zweng, Cash Joyce, Dan Montgomery, James Smith, Mark Richards, Ralph Arnold, Jay Stanford, Lyle Becker, Spencer Pape, Loren Karro, Will Koehler, Bill Kaltschnee, Cabot Pitts, Peter Barela 
	ke Fletcher, Steve Pe
	 Whatley, Michael 
	D 
	R 
	1. Review Agenda 
	D 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Mr. Bay informed the board that there were two additional investigative matters for review that were not on the agenda. The board amended the agenda to add consent agreements #2025-001034 and #2025-001048 under Investigative Matters for Review on the agenda. 
	Motion: 
	Move to amend the agenda by adding consent agreements #2025-001034 and #2025-001048 under Investigative Matters for Review on the agenda. (First: Kunder; Second: Flores). 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -Yes 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	Lorring -Yes 
	Flores -Yes 
	Hauch -Yes 
	Mumford -Yes 
	2. Ethics Review 
	Brief Discussion: 
	There were no ethical disclosures by any board members or staff. 
	3. Meeting Minutes 
	Brief Discussion: 
	There was no discussion to amend the meeting minutes. 
	Motion: 
	Move to approve the meeting minutes for October 1, 2025, as written (First: McCarthy; Second: Kunder). 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -Yes 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	T 
	Lorring -Yes 
	T 
	T 
	Flores -Yes 
	FT FT 
	T 
	FT 
	Mumford -Yes 
	FT 
	FT 
	FT 
	4. Division Update 
	FT FT 
	AFT 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board welcomed Director Sylvan Robb to the  meeting, who was in attendance to provide the board’s Division Update. 
	irector Sylvan Robb 
	AF 
	Prov 
	AF 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Director Robb started a discussion regarding Prov, a vendor for online testing that the division already uses already uses for other boarded programs, and  for other boa for other b a possible vendor for the board to use toto provide examinationsrovide examinations online instead on of in-person. She informed the board that therehere is no cost for Prov to  is no cost for Pro is no cost f v to set up exams for administration, that the division would  candidates to taket  the exam and the information they wo
	 division monthly for those who took exams. Mr. McCarthy asked if the prices would be the for GMU exams and RGO exams, to which Chairman Bloomquist said that the boardrd is only o  looking to do GMU exams online at the moment because there was still work to get the RGO exams online. Director Robb also informed the board that the GMU exams would be available year-round, instead of only twice a year, which is what the board was looking to do. 
	obb started a discussion reg
	obb started a discuss 
	approve candidates t 
	RA 
	DRA
	Current Fiscal Report: FY25 3/4Quarters & FY 26 1Quarter 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Director Robb provided the board with their FY25 3/4quarter fiscal reports, which came to a deficit for the fiscal year but ultimately came to an overall cumulative surplus. She reminded the board that their renewals at the end of 2025 would likely add a substantial surplus because of renewal licensing fees. She also provided the board with their FY26 1quarter fiscal report, which was right on track with their expected revenues/expenditures, and again came to a small deficit but ultimately came to an overal
	AO 360: Discussion w/ Director Robb 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Director Robb provided an overview of Administrative Order 360, which was issued by Governor Mike Dunleavy on August 4th, 2025, to improve the quality, transparency, and efficiency of the state’s regulatory environment. She said that all state entities in state government were charged to engage with the regulatory reform. She said that one of the requirements was stakeholder engagement. She said that the division held 16 hours of public meetings to gather input as well as the opportunity for written comment
	, fede
	ments are included  each regulation. She said that partial credit is available for reducing regulatory burdens as well, such as reducing the number of training hours required for licensure. She informed the board that the deadline to have a plan in place is February 13, 2026. She informed them that they need to have a board approved spreadsheet that includes all of their reductions, and any regulation projects that they working on, to the division working on,  by that date. The division will then send it to
	 divisi
	group within the divis 
	ocess is b 
	DRAFT 
	can ask for an extension. He asked if AO 360 keeps the board from working on regulation projects, to which she said that any work on regulation projects would require a waiver. Chairman Bloomquist said that while he would like to work on AO 360, he did not think it was going to go anywhere anytime soon. He said that the board could work on the project, but that he would not be on the board much longer and that he had no intention of working on it. Mr. Bay reminded the board that the reason their large proje
	 if their regulations project that was paused with the Department of Law was dead in thead in the water, to which Director Robb said that they water, to which water, to whi would need to add it to their spreadsheet to get it appropreadsheet to get it appro de  approved. If approved, it would continue through the regular regulations process. Mr. Bay asked Director Robb how other boards were working on AO 360, to which n AO which  that multiple boards had created workgroups with thee intent of up as a whole b
	tent of meeting up as 
	the nature of the b
	DRAFT
	DR 
	5. BOG Update 
	DR
	DR
	D 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Mr. Lorring, the B Board of Game (BOG) representative on the board, provided the board with an update. He said that the next BOG meeting would be in Wrangell, with a work session on January 22, 2026, and a board meeting January 23-27, 2026. He said the next meeting would be in Kodiak, March 20-25, 2026. He said that comments on proposals for the Wrangell meeting are due by January 9and the comments on proposals for the Kodiak meeting are due by March 6. He said that they received a complaint regarding websi
	Mr. Lorring, th 
	D 
	Off Record: 10:32 a.m. 
	person does not get conflicted out of discussion at BOG meetings. With nothing left to discuss, the board took a break. 
	6. Public Comment 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board began public comment. 
	Dan Montgomery 
	Dan Montgomery, an MGO, said that the board was not enforcing the UVC code requirement that a licensee be registered in a GUA the year they apply a hunter in the ADF&G permit drawing and the year the permit is valid for. He said that people are illegally getting permits because of this. He asked if the board was going to do anything about it, to which Chairman Bloomquist said that he thought the issue had already been dealt with, and asked what Mr. Montgomery would do. Mr. Montgomery said that the board sho
	 ADF&G to confirm UVC codes for winning permits and that they can inform bad UVC codes, at which time the permits can be pulled. Mr. Kunder asked ifr asked if the  board could  bad UVC cform ADF&G of ba  board could assess aa  fine or sanction licensees that use bad UVC codes, to which Chairman Bloomquist said he thinks they should. Mr. Bay said that this cussion ha des, to which Chairman Blo his discussion had already happened at a previous h board meeting. He said that thehe regulation is  regulation is g
	, states, “Unique verification codes will be current until the associated guide use areaa registration exp
	e use area expires or is withdrawn or amended,” which is why he had been telling RGOs that th that they can  use their previous codes as long as their registration had not expired. on had not expired. He  reminded the board that one of their intended regulation projects included fixing this problem. Chairman Bloomquist said that the original intent of the regulation use a UVC code if an RGO was registered in the year of the permit application deadline and the year the permit is good for, and that they shoul
	DRAFT
	Mark Richards 
	Mark Richards,Ric  Executive Director of the Resident Hunters of Alaska (RHAK), said that he thought there was a lot of confusion at the BOG ACR meeting. He said that RHAK had opposed ACR 2 because it did not comply with the statute that a GCP proposal must be heard in the region where it would be implemented. He said that AAG Kimberly said there was uncodified language in what was SB189 that became SB97, and that the board did not have to consider a GCP in the region where it would be implemented. He said 
	D 
	proposals. He said that the first approved GCP has to be implemented for at least three years before any other GCPs could be created and was not sure how the BGCSB wanted the BOG to deal with it. He said that he continues to be amazed that the BGCSB cannot prevent someone with felonies to receive a license. Chairman Bloomquist said that he agreed with him but that their attorneys have told the board that they have to issue the licenses. Mr. Kunder assured Mr. Richards that the board has discussed this issue
	Steve Perrins II 
	Mr. Perrins II, an MGO, said that he was under the impression that RGOs are supposed to use their UVC codes to put their clients in the drawing and not hand them out to clients so that they can put themselves in the drawing. He asked if it was possible for the applications to be reviewed prior to being drawn, so theyy can y can assure  that everyone in the drawing is legal and that there are no legal issues later on down road between clients being drawn and RGOs not having an authorizedorized UVC code. H  a
	 on down the ro
	ater on dow
	o they should not be able  t 
	ourt. Mr. Bay informed himurt. Mr. Bay informed him  that ADF&G does not have a system set up that prevents unauthorized codes at the time of application and that he reviews a spreadsheet of winning permit h holders to confirm or deny the UVC codes. He said that he spoke about possibly getting a system setup that would prevent unauthorized UVCVC codes at the application but was not sure if it was implemented for the 2025 draw application deadline. He also said that the board had previously discussed UVC pro
	. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Perrins II for his time. 
	ts unauthorized UVC codes 
	uthorized 
	AS 08.54.605
	DRAFT
	Coke Wallace 
	 Wallace, an MGO, said that the UVC code system should be simplified and that if the board isard is not  going to enforce it that they should just get rid of it. He said that if the GCP is not created and used soon it is not going to matter because of the decline of resources in the field. He said the resource are suffering and nobody is doing anything about it. He said that ADF&G should have the courage and fortitude to tell the BGCSB and BOG that the resources are suffering and that things need to slow do
	Coke Wallace, a
	Coke Wallace, 
	ea 
	D 
	transported by a helicopter is for hunting or lodging, even though people were being lodged to go hunting. Without a clear definition of ‘gear,’ he said that it is very difficult to charge people for using a helicopter. Mr. Kunder said that if the sole purpose of the cabin is to go hunting then it is clear that it is a violation. Mr. Perrins II said that the board should be able to use the professional ethics standards for guides regulations to prosecute people who use helicopters for hunting purposes. With
	Cash Joyce 
	Cash Joyce, an RGO, said that Article 8, sections 1-3, of the Alaska Constitution, include Statement of Policy, General Authority, and Common Use is all based on maximum yield. Section 4 is Sustained Yield, which establishes the mandate for natural resource management based on the sustained yield principle. He said that with the increasing demand for game sustained yield should be just as important as maximum yield or the state is going to have a major problem with wildlife moving forward. Lastly, he said t
	T 
	7. HR/TAR Presentation 
	FT 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Mr. Bay provided a presentation of to request and submit hunt records and transporter activityy reports online. He said onli  that instructions for the process can be found on the front pagent page of the BG  website. He went through the instructions and showed the process for both requesting submitting hunt records. Chairman Bloomquist asked that licensees start using the system because it helps staff from spending so much time onon them. 
	n of the board’s new  system 
	FT 
	8. Probation Report 
	RA
	RA 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Senior Investigator Jennifer Summers provided the board’s probation report, which was for the periodd of October 1, 202 
	r Investigator Jennifer Sum e period of October 1, 2025, through December 4, 2025. She informed the board that  31 licensees on probation, four of which were out of compliance, and one ofthere were 31 licensees o  suspended. One licensee had been released from probation since their last report. Chairman Bloomquist thought John Walker, the individual who was released from probation, was on suspension. Mr. Bay confirmed that Mr. Walker’s license was is suspended status. 
	there were 31 licen 
	RA 
	irm 
	D 
	9. Investigative Report 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board’s investigator, Lee Strout, provided the board with their investigative report, which was for the period of July 8, 2025, through December 5, 2025. He informed the board that there were 72 open cases and that 22 were closed since their last report. Chairman Bloomquist asked if there were any trends with violations since their last report, to which he said that GUA registration violations kept coming up. With nothing left to discuss, the board decided to enter into executive session to discuss inve
	10. Investigative Matters for Review: Executive Session 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board moved into executive session to discuss investigative matters. 
	Motion: 
	I, Mike Flores, move that the Alaska State Big Game Commercial Services Board enter into executive session in accordance with AS 44.62.310(c), and Alaska Constitutional Right to Privacy Provisions, for the purpose of discussing subjects that tend to prejudice the 
	reputation and character of any person, provided the person may request a public discussion; and matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be confidential. Board staff Thomas Bay, Janet Brown, Jenni Summers, Lee Strout to remain during the session (First: Flores; Second: Kunder). 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -Yes 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	Lorring -Yes 
	Flores -Yes 
	Hauch -Yes 
	Mumford -Yes 
	Brief Discussion: 
	No action was taken during executive session. The board took a break. 
	FT
	11. Summary/Motions from Executive Session 
	T 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Back from break, the board provided motions  regarding investigative matters discussed in executive session. 
	essio 
	FT 
	Case No. 2024-001066 
	FT 
	AFT 
	Motion: 
	Move to accept the consent agreement for 
	 for Case No. 2024-001066 N (First: Flores; Second: 
	nsent agreement fo 
	Kunder). 
	AF 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board considered the proposed consent agreement for Case No. 2024-001066: An assistant guide
	dered thee proposed conse de was convicted in  a plea  deal for knowingly providing a false statement and omitting information on a n ADF&G
	 ADF&G application. He was fined $3,000 ($0 suspended), placed on criminal probation for 18 months, and ordered to pay $2,000 restitution to the state. 
	ADF 
	AF 
	d on crion cr minal
	nal probation for ate. His hunting privileges were suspended for 18 months. Fourteen other counts were 
	Kunder 
	DRAFT
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniekk  -No
	D 
	Kunder -No 
	Bloomquist -Yes 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	Lorring -Yes 
	Flores -Yes 
	Hauch -Yes 
	Mumford -Yes 
	Case No. 2025-000039 
	Motion: 
	Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000039 (First: Flores; Second: Kunder). 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board considered the proposed consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000039: An RGO failed to renew his GUAs and provided services to eight clients within those GUAs. He 
	also failed to complete hunt contracts for the eight clients. The reviewing board member (RBM) recommended a $16,000 fine ($13,000 suspended), probation for three years, and a board reprimand. There was no discussion. 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -Yes 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	Lorring -Yes 
	Flores -Yes 
	Hauch -Yes 
	Mumford -Yes 
	Case No. 2025-000235 
	T 
	Motion: 
	Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000235 (First: Flores; Second: Kunder). 
	ase No.  No 2 
	T 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board considered the proposed consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000235: An assistant guide directed his client to harvest a brown bear because he perceived the brown bear to be charging him and his client and claimed it as a D onsent agreement for Consent agreeme 
	o harvest a brown bear bec
	client and  it as a Defense of Life or Property (DLP) situation. The brown bear was discoveredwas discovereddiscovered to be to  a sow with two first year cubs. After an  w investigation, it was determined that the DLP was inaccurate. The applicant was convicted in a plea deal which resultedsulted in a $250 fine a $250 fine and  a $ 
	T 
	ermined that theat the  DLP was in 
	esulted $1,000 in restitution to the state. The RBM recommended a $4,000 fine ($2,000 suspend suspended), probation for three years, and a board reprimand. Chairman Bloomquist said that he felt there was more people involved in the violation and that theynd that they should  gotten in trouble as well. 
	$4,000 fine $2,000 suspend 
	RAFT 
	Boniek -
	RA 
	Kunder -No 
	Bloomquist 
	DR 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	D D 
	McCarthy 
	DR 
	Lorring -No 
	D 
	Flo
	D 
	Hauch -Yes 
	Mumford Yes
	umford 
	D 
	Case No. 2025-000403 
	Motion: 
	Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000403 (First: Flores; Second: Kunder). 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board considered the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-000403: An RGO tested and got registered for two GMUs. After an investigation, it was found that two of the three required affidavits for experience within the GMUs were fraudulent. The RBM recommended a fine of $6,000 ($6,000 suspended contingent upon the licensee’s voluntary suspension of GMU 6 and GMU 21 certification until he provides sufficient evidence of experience approved by the board), probation for two years, and a board reprimand. Mr. 
	licensee came before the board again with any violations, there should be no leniency given. Chairman Bloomquist abstained from voting because the licensee worked for him. 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -Abstained 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	Lorring -Yes 
	Flores -Yes 
	Hauch -Yes 
	Mumford -Yes 
	Case No. 2025-001034 
	T 
	Motion: 
	Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-001034 (First: Flores; Second: Kunder). 
	ase No.  No 2 
	T 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board considered the consent agreement for Caseor Cas  No. 20
	eement No. 2025-001034: An RGO failed to renew his GUAs and provided services to eeme ces to three clientwwithin those t  GUAs. This is the RGO’s second GUA offense. The RBM recommended a one-year license suspension and stayed the suspension pending the successfulccessful completion comp  the probation period. The RBM also recommended a fine of $5,000 fine ($2,500 suspend ecommended a one-year ar l
	T 
	e ($2,5 suspended), probation for three years, and a board reprimand. Theree was no discussion.ere 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	AF 
	RAF 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -
	RA 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy 
	thy 
	RA 
	Lorring -Yes 
	D 
	DR 
	Floresores 
	DR 
	Hauch -Yes 
	D 
	Mumford 
	D DR 
	D
	Case No. 2025-001048 
	D 
	Motion: 
	D 
	Move to accept the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-001048 (First: Boniek; Second: Flores). 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board considered the consent agreement for Case No. 2025-001048: A transporter sent in four late transporter activity reports. The RBM recommended a $1,000 fine ($500 suspended), probation for two years, and a board reprimand. 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -Yes 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	Lorring -Yes 
	Flores -Yes 
	Hauch -Yes 
	Mumford -Yes 
	11. Exams 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Chairman updated the board on the exam changes that were discussed at a previous board meeting. He reminded the board that they were trying to move all exams except for the caping video to be done online, which would include a regulations project to include adding certain prerequisites that would take place of the in-person practical exams and removing the requirement for an in-person practical exam. Mr. Bay reminded the board that they still needed to motion to approve having the GMU exams provided online 
	Motion: 
	Move to approve having the Game Management Unit exams provided online through Prov (First: Kunder; Second: Flores). 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Boniek -Yes 
	Kunder -Yes 
	Bloomquist -Yes 
	Nordlum -Absent 
	T 
	McCarthy -Yes 
	T T 
	Lorring -Yes
	Lor 
	TT 
	Flores -Yes 
	FT FT 
	Hauc 
	T 
	FT 
	Mumford -Yes 
	FT FT 
	FT 
	12. Schedule Next Meeting(s) 
	FT 
	AFT
	AFT 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Mr. Bay explained how spreadsheet regarding discretionary requirements worked. He informedmed them 335 total discretionary requirements, which needed to be reduced by 15% (50.25) by 
	w the AO 360 spreadsheet  spreadsh 
	 (50.25) by the end of 2026 and 25% (83.75) by the end of 2027, resulting in total goal of 251.25 discretionaryoal o requirements. He reminded them that if they forward with their intended regulation projects it would increaseeasee the total number of discretionary requirements by 33. Afterdi discussion, the board decidedcided  to work o 
	hey wanted to move forw 
	AF 
	e work on on their own their ow  regarding AO 360 and convene for a meeting on January 28, 
	202025. 
	Brief Discussion: 
	With nothing leftng left to discuss, Chairman Bloomquist adjourned the to  meeting.
	D DR 
	Adjourn: 
	2:21 p.m.. 
	D D 
	Date Final Minutes Approved by the Board: 
	Meeting       OnBoard 
	.. 
	.. 
	 
	 
	 
	  
	. 
	.  
	.   
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*).*.++..!#,! 
	- 
	.# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*)/*++0.1.+.+ 2++0+0 .+2...+ + 
	3 
	.+1 # 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*)*+.2..+.0.0+2.. !"#$%#&!)*)"* 
	3 
	4# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*)*2.+0..+5)* ++6.!"#$%#&!)*)*1) *+7+2. 8..($#99!1)*+6.''2' '.'.+:+ .1.+ 
	.00+0..0. ..+ +. 
	3 
	.01 # 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*);*.+..+.++. !"#$%#&!$ 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*).*+.++. ..+... .+..!"#$%#&!)*)$* 
	3 
	.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#
	)*)*)<*.+5+++=.'''. 
	3 
	.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#& 
	($# 
	)*)*)@*...<A@;2.9! 
	.. 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#& 
	($# 
	)*)*)B*C+... 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&, 
	($# 
	)*)*)*++B+'/:'3'. 
	0+ 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*).*++ .#&'+.2++0+' ....+5'0+.. 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*)*)/*.'''..0+''.+ . '0.0..+. 0: 
	3 
	D# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*...+++')*.'.+.++. +2...+# 
	- 
	+# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*E.2++.++.=6+. 
	.0+++.!"#$%#&!)*)"*+%$. .6# 
	3 
	.+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*B.)*F)*. '+)*.0 
	.$0.2 .+.+1)*'+%$ ..6.+=6'0 +=..+... 
	++.+5:+++.++26+0 
	G).*.+1)/*+1)*01)*.1 );*. 1).*..1)<*.1)@*+1)B*+:1)*1)H*1)4* +1)I*1)-*:2+2.# 
	3 
	.0''# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*E.2++.++.=6)*F)* 
	.00..+6# 
	- 
	+++2# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#
	>)*.+2.6.:.+.6 #? 
	3 
	.0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*E.2+++= 2... 
	!"#$%#&!)*.#.+=+)*+ +0.1)*.+ +..!#,!1),*+%$ .2..+.++00+2. 
	.!"#$%#&!1)%*.'''..0+''. +. '0 .0.. +.0:1)$*.0+0+.!"#$%#&!)*),*1)&* 0.2...+06# 
	3J- 
	)'0*+ # 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*...+++'.+.++.+ 2...+# 
	- 
	+# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*E++=+'+.)*+6' 
	2..++60).*.  ++.1)/*+1 )*61)*+1..6'. +00+.+ +1)* 6+# 
	3 
	+60+# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*E..+= 
	6($.6# 
	3 
	..+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	-J. 
	-++# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#
	)*E.2++.++.6 
	.+'+%$..6.+6')*2 ++6+...!#,!1) *..0' +&!2..2...+' 
	.++20.+G).*1)/*.1)*1
	3 
	C''0 # 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#
	)*.+:6..# 
	3 
	4# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*E.2+++.+)*. 
	.1)*.6 '.2.. 
	.'.+A:2+''. ''+'+2.1 
	),*=2.0++1. ++.00+= +'.2++2..+).*.++.+ .!"#$%..+=+. +1)/*.+26=+2..!"#$%#&&! !"#$%#&(!# 
	3J- 
	)6'*# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*E.2++.++6. 
	)*)*.0..+6# 
	3 
	.+0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#
	>)*.+2.6.:.+.6 #? 
	3 
	.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#$ 
	)*.+=+2. +.!"#$%#&!)*),*)/*')* +!..6.+6').*. ++..!#,!1)/*++ 0.1)* +.2..+.0.0+2..!"#$%#&!)*)"*1 )*2.+
	.00+0..0. ..+ +.1);*.+..+.++ .!"#$%#&!$1).*+.+ +...+.. ...+..!"#$%#&!)*)$*1)<*.+5+ +.
	2++0+'.... +A'0+ 
	..1)/*.'''..0+'' .+. '0.0 ..+.0:1)*0+ 
	+=.+A:+++.++26+ 0G)*.+1)*+1)*01)0* 
	.1)0*. 1)0*..1)0*.1)0*+1)6*+:1)6*1)6* 1)6*+1)6*1)60*:2+2.# 
	3 
	.''0'# 
	$ 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#$ 
	)*...+++'.+.++.+ 2...+# 
	- 
	+# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#$ 
	)*E.2++.++.6+. 
	.0+++.!"#$%#&!)*)"*+%$.. 6# 
	3 
	.+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#$ 
	)*+(J,!J!!&# 
	-J. 
	-++# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($#$
	>)*.+2.6.:.+.6 #? 
	3 
	.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&(!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#(
	>)*.+2.+=6+62.2 
	..6#B'2.2..6'.+ 
	++6'.++ ++'.+ .!"#$%..+=+#? 
	3 
	6# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&(!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#(
	>)*.+2.+6+6 
	2.2..6#B'2.2..6' 
	.+++6'.+ )*.+ 6.!"#$%#&!)*)%*++ '++= '.6.+.!"#$%#&&!!"#$%#&(!2+ 0'.++ ++'.+. !"#$%..+
	3 
	6# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&(!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#(
	>)*E+6'+'+%$..6')* 
	261)*.6..!#,!. 6#? 
	3 
	C# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&(!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#(
	>)*E.'++2'20.++)*.#? 
	3 
	C0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&(!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#(
	>)*.60+.2#B.6)*= 
	6''2.2..6'.++ ='.++ ++'.+. !"#$%..+ =+1)*6 .!"#$%#&!)*)%*++''2.2. .6'.
	3 
	0+# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*E.2++++=.+2... 
	!"#$%#&!.# 
	- 
	+# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*/+=.+2++'. 0)*... !#,!1)*++0.1),*0.+5 +++''.6.!"#$%#&!)*)%*1++ +=.+).*.!"#$%#&!)*)%*).*..++)*0' +=
	.+50+.+KK.1 
	)$*.+..+.++. !"#$%#&!$1)&*++ .#&'+.2++0+' 
	....+A'0+. 
	.1)(*.'''..0+''. +. '0 .0.. +.0:1)"*. .0 .0.!"#$%..'(!# 
	3J- 
	)'0'* +# 
	% 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&! 
	($# 
	)*.+=.+.!"#$%#&!)*)%*)/*+ 2...+.++..!"#$%#&!)*)%*).*# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&,!'.!"#$%#(9!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&,$ 
	($#, 
	)*E.2++++2... 
	!"#$%#&,!.#.++.++)*...!#,!1)* ++0.1),*.+50+ 
	..+KK.1)%*+. 
	++..+.....+. .!"#$%#&,!)*)*1)$*20.!"#$%#&,!)*)%*1)&* .+..+.++.!"#$%#&!$1 )(*++ . #&'+.2++0+' 
	....+A'0+..1 
	)"*.'''.. 0+''.+ . '0.0..+. 0:1)9*.  .0.0 .!"#$%..'(!# 
	3J- 
	)'0'* +# 
	% 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&,!'.!"#$%#(9!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&,$ 
	($#, 
	)*.+06++ .0 .!"#$%#&,$)*'2.+.++ # 
	3 
	E0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&,!'.!"#$%#(9!'. !"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&,$ 
	($#, 
	)*E.++.'.++2.+ 
	+.0+. '+#.+:0. 
	++.2.+0#C.+++ 
	+.++:'':':++':++'.+ .+0. +#.+. ..+:':':+# 
	3 
	00# 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!! 
	($#% 
	='+=.'+6,= # 
	3 
	;6# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#%$
	)*E.2++++2...!"#$%#&$! 
	.#.++)*++0 .1)*.++..!# ,!1),*++ 
	2...($#%!1)$*.0+2.+. A01)&*. .0. 
	0.!"#$%..'(!# 
	3J- 
	)'0'* +# 
	% 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#%$ 
	)*B.)*. '+.)* 
	...!'. 
	K.'+.!1)*+ ++'.+K.!#$!1),*+ 
	++.'.++ 
	.,#!&#9F,#!&#9$1)%*+.'.+. 
	.,## 
	3 
	# 
	% 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#%$ 
	)*E..0+)*)$*.'++2.. 
	'2.!...'20... 
	20++.A0# 
	3 
	.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	($#%$
	>)*.+.++.2...!#9!!.A+ 
	.#? 
	3 
	-# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($# 
	)*B..!"#$%#(!'=00+ 
	2...='+.=+.+ +# 
	3 
	01 # 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($# 
	)*.=2.00'2... ='.+++..+# 
	3 
	+.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*E.2++++.=2.0++2. .++2...($#!+2..#M. 
	..'.)*2++....= 1)*+.=.!"#$%#(!)*)*.).*= ++..'+... 
	A1)/*.2.+.=A1 )*.'2.+.=A'.0+. 
	!"#$%#(&!'.'..($#!# 
	3 
	B+# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*E... =#/+:. 
	.='..2.&!. .:+# 
	3 
	E# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*.++.+2...($#!# 2...($#!# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*.0..# 
	3 
	0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*.6$!.2++=.= 
	A0#.+.#@20'2 
	.2'.'=.0.$!. 
	.=A# 
	3 
	46# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($#!$ 
	)*.=2.++..++.)*K 
	.+..1)*++. ..($#!# 
	3 
	-K+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($# 
	)*E...!"#$%#(&!0.'+<= M@'!('#E.+.. 
	02.=# 
	3 
	.# 
	 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($# 
	)*/.'=2.''..+++ .0+....+.# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($# 
	)*...2..+..# 
	3 
	+.0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($# 
	)*..+..'.=.+++.++ ..# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($#
	)*E.=.++ .=A++# 
	3 
	..# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($# 
	)*... 
	+.K''+# 
	3 
	B# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'.!"#$%#(&! 
	($# 
	)*B.+.2 ..=' .+.=.+#E. 
	2++..=# 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&"! 
	($# 
	)*.+2. ..++)*..+. 2++.+''++ +'++ 
	N!!'!!!.2++0++ .++.+5 
	.01)*+.'''+'++').*. '.:0+++'+.'.+.1 )/*...'.+'. 0+.# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&"! 
	($# 
	)*.=2..+ ++2+..= 2+..++.0. )*..= .# 
	3 
	-0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&"! 
	($# 
	)*.=.++.2 .!.. )*.# 
	3 
	-# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&"! 
	($# 
	)*E.+.0)*. 
	0++++2+# 
	3 
	.+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#,
	)*E.2+++.+.. 
	!"#$%#($!.#..2..='. 
	=.++.++20.G)*.+5 
	=+1)*.2...=1 
	>),*.2... =+1)%*2 
	.+.+.K1?
	.+00+$'!!!+. # 
	3 
	2# 
	$ 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#, 
	)*.6,.+2..#E='.= 
	++)*.# 
	3 
	;6=# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#, 
	)*.=60+,'+ .+2...0# .+++ 
	2.2.++.+'.<L.2.2...# E.+.2+2.<L.'2... .0.<L...2+...2+ 
	.0:+#/.2++2.2#-2++. +++2.2# 
	3 
	I+='2.2+'+# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#, 
	)*B2..!"#$%#($!'2++0,!.. 
	.',!..++'2..0+# 
	3 
	;0++# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#, 
	)*.=2..  .0+++ 2.. 
	.=+. =.)*)*F 
	)$*)*.')*....+ .+++ 2...= +1)*+.++.+...2+.2 =.2.+ # 
	3 
	.+ # 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#, 
	)*.='0 02.'+.+ 
	.2.K.+20.'+ 
	0.0+$'!!!+.# 
	3 
	C.K# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#,
	>)*.==2.2+.2 9.!!. !2 9')*.==0. 1)*.==0.).*'0+ .+!'!!'.2...
	I!'!!#? 
	3 
	+ # 
	, 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#, 
	).*.==. .# 
	3 
	I# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#,$ 
	<LB;=MLE.BEE;L;.;.I.#E.+<=ML.I''99%' !!9'+!'!'-0!$'+!%'#E. 
	.-+ .. +..!"#$%#($!)*# 
	3 
	.# 
	 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#% 
	)*.=2...+++''.. 00.+# 
	3 
	+''# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#% 
	)*..+..'=2...++0+. .'+=.'=0+0.. 2....00.+2# 
	3 
	;0+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#% 
	)*E+2.)*.'.=.++0++' 
	+.''2..+.'+=.'= 
	0+0..'+.'+2.!.+..#E. 
	=.++.0+.. '.+=.' =2... .020+'2.++2'..+# 
	3 
	0+# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#% 
	)*E.=.++:.0++2..+ 
	.0+..'+=.' 
	=#B.0++2..++'. 
	=.++2.+.0+. 
	.'.+=.'=#E.= 
	.++2.+2.&!.+..# 
	3 
	<.2 # 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#% 
	)*.=.++....=+ 2..0+'++.2'+)*)*.# 
	3 
	# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#% 
	)*E.= =+=. 
	0.++0++.' 2. '..0 0.+'6 
	2.)*6..A1)*.= 
	=+=.0... .2.+).* 2.... 1)/*2.'+'++2... .1)*.++ .# 
	3 
	.0++6# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#% 
	).*B.'OO2..)* 
	0++6'2'.+'++.+.1)* +1),*+.0 0+'+..:. .+.+2...1)%*.5+ +# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. 
	!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,!GE.2 
	+.+;6+. # 
	($#% 
	)*...!"#$%#&!)*0.'. .'.=+'' .)*2.+.+).*.2....: +1)/* .2..2... 
	.:+1)*+...$!+. ).*)/*..1)*.0'2.+.+ ++)*.'+1..'+'' ..+.= '+++.
	3 
	+''# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(!'. 
	!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,!GE. 
	+.+;6+. 2. .2 
	4.C 
	($#%)2* 
	) *...'780+0.# 
	- 
	0+# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#$ 
	)*.=2..2... !"#$%#&,!)*),*.++'.++..'2..'2. .+2..+'+....+.0# 
	3 
	# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#$ 
	)*B.'78+=''+.'+# 
	3 
	# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	($#$ 
	)*.=2...++)*+0+.+'0. +.''+2...=2++:.+. .+.+++2.=+:.++1)*. ++..+=.''+'.+ .+
	3 
	.0''.:# 
	, 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9!'. !"#$%#&"! 
	($#& 
	)*.=.+++02 .+2.9! '00'2..0+# 
	3 
	+0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9!'. !"#$%#&"! 
	($#&
	)*.)*+.'+' .='+. .=5..0+=1)*+. .+1),*+.+.'.+ .1)%*+.6..+ 2++.+1)&*..+1)(*.
	2.+0++# 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9!'. !"#$%#&"! 
	($#& 
	)*.=.++.+# 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9!'. !"#$%#&"! 
	($#&
	)*.2...'2.++ 2..+ .&#!$'.++ 0.2..0 . 
	+.+#L02+++2. 
	+....+.. 0+160++22... 
	..K0++...+.. 00#L02+++. 62.2#L0++K. 
	2.++2.# 
	3 
	L0 
	% 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#&$ 
	)*E.) *21)*. 
	...<1),* .# 
	3 
	.# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#&$ 
	)*.+9!.2. ..' .2+++.'2++ '+ 
	#E+..A6' 
	0.+.&!.+.# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#&$ 
	)*B.' .2+++. 
	)*.=2.0++2.. 2..1)*.-+1),*...<1 )%*.+# 
	3 
	-# 
	% 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#($! 
	($#&$ 
	)*E.2..)*...< 
	 .1)*6 ).*0'+)*0 1)*..+.01) *60+. 2++1)/*+21)*+2.1)*0 1);*.6.
	1)@*.-+1)B*.6+2..1)* +01)H*.+0.2# 
	3 
	.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"!'.!"#$%#(! 
	($#,%
	)*L.+0#.='=''+=. .+0.++.!"#$%#(!#B. 'O.+0O)*++. 
	+++'+' .:2+':++'+'  
	.+.+1)*+).*++2..)*F)*.1 
	)/*+++++.+.!"#$%#(!1)*+ +++.0'.'...1)*+.' 
	2.,!.0'0. '.'.L)* 
	0++++.1)*0++ ++'''..01)*+1);*++ 2..# 
	3 
	..+0 # 
	& 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"!'.!"#$%#(! 
	($#,%
	)*+2.+2#.+++.++)*+2.+++ 
	+1)*.K0''+ 
	+.0.0# 
	3 
	+.K# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"!'.!"#$%#(! 
	($#,%
	)*++#.+++ .++)*:0+. .+'+...).*+0  .+6.+1)/*+0 '+'+.'.1)*.+.++ +
	>),*0++0+0..+++ 
	++.'+'2++'.0'01)%* ...+'.''. 0.. .+5..1)$*... :++++:$..91)&*0+.. +..1?
	3 
	''# 
	( 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"!'.!"#$%#(! 
	($#,%
	)*.+#.+++.++)*.+0++:' 2++'2++'++2.1),*'+++ '+++'.'.'+0.6.+.+ 
	.+'+.0+ 0.+1
	+1)$*62'KK+'2+0'2+0'. 
	+:.+2.$..91)&*'''.+' +..1?
	+K+1)"*++22.0. 
	.61)!*0+..6..': ++'0..+2 '+ 
	+..'+).*.2'KK+'+: 
	..,!2.++2+.0$.."$$..9'2 
	KK++1..'O+O..0$..9#99!1 )/*++.K.+1
	)* ++....1 +2.+..'2.' .# 
	3 
	.+.+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"!'.!"#$%#(! 
	($#,%
	)*2.+202#.+++.++ )*2.++21) *0+2 +2+++1
	3 
	0# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"!'.!"#$%#(! 
	($#,% 
	)*+#.)*+:... +:.1)*.++00.+' :.:.0+'++'.2+.. ($#%!1),*0++..!"#$%'0++. +++1
	+ +2..... K0.01 ..'O+O..0.,"#!$#9&$1)%*0.!"#$%' 
	0++0# 
	3 
	+0# 
	% 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	..($#,9$ 
	)*L'.2++02.0++#M. 
	.0'.)*2++ ...+ .1)*+..!"#$%#(!)*)*.).*+ 
	+.0'+. ..A1 )/*02.+.A1)*0'2.+. A'.0+.!"#$%#&$!'.'..($#%!!# 
	3 
	++6++ # 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	..($#,9$ 
	)*E.0+.#E0 
	.# 
	3 
	.# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	..($#,9$ 
	)*.++0+2...($#%!!# 
	3 
	B+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	..($#,9$ 
	)*.00. # 
	3 
	0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	..($#,9$ 
	)*+JJ!# 
	- 
	-# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	..($#,9$ 
	)*.6$!02++.A 
	0#.+0#@20'2 .2'.'.0.$! 
	0.A# 
	3 
	6# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&! 
	..($#,9$ 
	)*.2.++0.++.)*K 
	.+.01)*++ ...($#%!!# 
	3 
	B+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#(&! 
	..($#%!! 
	)*;.0.!"#$%#&$!0.'+ 
	E.0'M!'#E.+.. 
	02..!"#$%#&$!# 
	3 
	'+# 
	 
	 
	( 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#(&! 
	..($#%!! 
	)*M.+'.+++.0+.. 
	0.+.# 
	3 
	B+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#(&! 
	..($#%!! 
	)*B+.+.+'..+++.++ 
	.0# 
	3 
	+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#(&! 
	..($#%!! 
	)*E..++:.00++. +.K'' 
	+# 
	3 
	B# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#(&! 
	..($#%!! 
	)*.'60. 2.00+''2+. =2... .2..+# 
	3 
	06# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#(&! 
	..($#%!! 
	)*E+2..+.!"#$%#&$!)*'.++. 
	+0.02.($.+ .0# 
	3 
	+# 
	-GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	..($#%!$)2* 
	)*.++:2 .=.#. 
	++J&.:....2..%#%$# 
	3 
	:K. 
	 
	-GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	..($#%!$)2* 
	)*.0+.++:2.0+#)*+ 
	+++..0+#E..0+6.0+1. 
	++6+'+2'++0+#)*..0++ :'2++0.0 '..0++ ++0+#),*00= 
	+++2+#)%*00+ 
	+#)$*B+2..2+.++++.. ...0#)&*+:0+'.'++K 
	++0+#)(*.2..+'.++.+ 2..0. .0++0 0#)"*.++ 
	.K..0# 
	3 
	+ 
	 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!! .!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&"! 
	..($#%! 
	)*.+6,=# 
	)*+JJ!!(# 
	3 
	6# -# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&"! 
	..($#%! 
	)*.++.++)*. .+.2++.+ 
	''+++'++N!!'!!!.2++0++ 
	 .++.+501)*+. '''+'++').*.'.:0+++' 
	+.'.+.1)/*.. .'.+'.0+. # 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&"! 
	..($#%! 
	)*..++.2.!..)* .# 
	3 
	B# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&"! .!"#$%#&!! 
	..($#%! 
	)*E.+.0)*. 
	0+++2+# 
	)*+(J,!J!!&# 
	3 
	.++2.# 
	..($#%,! 
	- 
	-# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%%! 
	)*L.+0#.'='= .+0.++.!"#$%#(!#B.'O.+0O 
	)*++.++ +'+'.:2+':++'+ ' 1 
	)*+).*++2.. )*F)*.1)/*++2. 
	+.+.!"#$%#(!1)*++2. .# 
	3 
	.+0+ # 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%%! 
	)*+2.+2#.= 00.++)*+ 
	2.++++1)*.K 
	0''++.00# 
	3 
	B+.K# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%%! 
	)*+#.=0 0.++)*:0+..+'+. 2.+.+00).*+0  .+62.+001)/*+0 '+
	+1)(*0.+K+1)"* 
	0+++:+'2.+1)9*0 
	.:+1)!*0+K' 
	'++)<*.+0.:+1 )*0.'0'.+2...++21)*0 0:+... =+:.2+ .++.+1),*++22 
	..00..61)%*0 :...+:.# 
	3 
	++ # 
	% 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(!'. !"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%%! 
	)*2.+202#. =00. ++)*2.++2 1)*0+2+2+++1),* 2++0202.+2.. +# 
	3 
	B02# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(!'. 
	!"#$%#(9!GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	..($#%%!)2* 
	)*0++0.!"#$%' 0++0+++1 00++2..2:. 2'6.++2..2: +.+ +2...5++++ .# 
	3 
	2.+ 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(!'. 
	!"#$%#(9!GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	..($#%%!)2* 
	)*.O+O..0.,"#!$#9&$ 
	- 
	.O+O 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&"!'. !"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%$! 
	)*.=++00.+++0 2.+)*2.9!'0 01)*+'00'0+. 9!00# 
	3 
	+0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&"!'. !"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%$!
	)*.200)*+.'+' .='+..5=5 ..0+=1)*+.. +1)%*.'.+'2. +'1)$*.+++1)
	+++.1)!*.. 2... 
	+.+'.++.'D@.'0+.'+01)*2. +.61)*+.++2G7.+ 
	002. ++'.' 2.2.+0++2#.+ .+2..2.+.6 
	081),*+.++2G7.+ 
	00.+'+''.' .0.:''+ '+':.+'++2#8 
	3 
	+# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&"!'. !"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%$! 
	)*..++.+# 
	3 
	B# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&$!'.!"#$%#&"!'. !"#$%#(!'.!"#$%#(9! 
	..($#%$! 
	)*.'6.2. 00+''2+. =2... .2..+# 
	3 
	06# 
	-GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	..($#%$$)2* 
	)*.+.++..00. ..!"$%.....+. 0''+.0# 
	3 
	.+ 
	 
	-GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	..($#%$$)2* 
	)*E.+..'.' 
	+=.02:.+# 
	- 
	-# 
	 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(%! 
	..($#%&! 
	)*.=2.2++++,!'!!&'2.2. ..''2''.0.. 
	=5+.K# 
	3 
	B=+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#(%! 
	..($#%&! 
	)*E+.6+'.=)* 
	++0.1)*0.= ..=.0+0..0 ..# 
	3 
	+6# 
	-GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	..($#&$$)2* 
	)*.+'.!"#$%#&$!)*'00.. 
	2.+0++2#B0.0'.)*+ 
	00.+2.+ .0++.1)*.++..2.++. ..+#... '+. 
	.#E.++..+ 
	.+.# 
	-3)!* 
	1=2. +0+2# 
	 
	-GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	,..($#&$$)2* 
	)*..!"#$%#&$!)*72.+ 08..)* .6+0++.0+'.+'' .1)*..+'.2:+.1),* ++.++++:0' '':2..2 +..
	3 
	2.O2.+0O.0 
	 
	 
	-GE.+. 
	+;6+.2 
	. .24.C 
	%..($#&$$)2* 
	)*..78L<+M LD+# 
	- 
	.OO 
	 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&(! 
	..($#9!! 
	)*E.+2+.!"#$%#&&!!"#$%#&(!++.!"#$%#$9F 
	!"#$%#(9!# 
	- 
	# 
	! 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&(! 
	..($#9!! 
	)*+JJ!!(# 
	- 
	-# 
	! 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&(! 
	..($#9!! 
	)*+JJ!!(# 
	- 
	-# 
	! 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&(! 
	..($#9!! 
	)*.+2+=+ )*+2++ 0.1)*.+2+..!#,!1),*.+2++ ..+2...++' ++.!"#$%#&"!)*1)%*2...+ .
	3 
	2++ # 
	$ 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&(! 
	..($#9!! 
	)*.+2++ )*+2++ 0.1)*.+2+..!#,!1),*+ +.!"#$%#&"!)*1)%*2...+0 0.++1)$*.0+2.+. 
	501)&*..+.0 .L< 
	+++.+51)(*..++0.. ($#%$)*'.+'+++'+++.'+ .1)"*.0.!"#$%#&&!)*# 
	3 
	2++ # 
	" 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&(! 
	..($#9!! 
	)*.+2++=.+)*+2+ +0.1)*.+2+..!#,!1),*. .=.+.+.++# 
	3 
	2++ # 
	, 
	.!"#!#!!'.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&&!'. !"#$%#&(! 
	..($#9!! 
	)*...+++2+'.+.++.+ 2...+# 
	3 
	B+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(! 
	..($#9! 
	)*B.!"#$%#(!)*)*'7++..8+)*+ 
	++1)*.+++# 
	3 
	++++# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	..($#9! 
	)*E..''++6.!"#$%#&!F!"#$%#&,!2+++ ..+A.+ .20+ 
	.2..6+ # 
	3 
	.0+6# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	..($#9! 
	)*...6.!"#$%#&!'.+ +!.0+0 # 
	3 
	0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	..($#9! 
	)*...6 .!"#$%#&!)*)%*).*)*'. ++&!0.+# 
	3 
	0# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	..($#9! 
	)*...!"#$%#&,!)*)*'.++ &!.02+#.+,!.&! .0+2.+=+# . .!"#$%#&,!)*)%*)/* !# 
	3 
	'0'# 
	, 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	..($#9! 
	)*....!"#$%#&,!)*)%*) .*'.2 .=2.+. 
	...+..++2 G)*.:2+6 
	.1)*.:2++ +1),*.:2+. '': '.'.1 )%*.+.'+:'.0+. +.1)$*.:2+6 + +# 
	3 
	+# 
	$ 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	..($#9! 
	)*....!"#$%#&!)*)*'2.+ =+.=0.0+=. '2'.==..+!' 
	.6...=2++. # 
	3 
	+6# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!$'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&,! 
	..($#9! 
	)*B.'7.08+2: .0 
	+2.+=+# 
	3 
	+06# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"! 
	..($#9,! 
	)*L00+.+.'. 
	.+.!"#$%#&"!# 
	3 
	# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&"! 
	..($#9,! 
	)*E.2++:.2'2++ ..+2. #C.,!0.'.= .++0. .#E.6 
	.++,!# 
	3 
	2+# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#(9! 
	..($#9%! 
	)*..78.!"#$%#(9!'708+ 0'++'0 0''+. +2.'')*.1)*.0' '+# 
	3 
	;6# 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&,!'.!"#$%#(! 
	..($#99! 
	)*L+.6.2'.!"#$%..')*78./< 
	+0/1)*78.+..1),* 78.'';0+1)%* 7+2.8+0'+2..!"#$% ..'.0+.!"#$%#(9!)9*')*')*# 
	- 
	0+# 
	! 
	.!"#$%#&!!'.!"#$%#&!'.!"#$%#&!'. !"#$%#&,!'.!"#$%#(! 
	..($#99! 
	)*L+.6.2'..')*78..0. 
	&#!$#9%!1)*7+8.+''+'' +'0++.+++. +# 
	- 
	0+# 
	! 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	. 
	...... ! 
	!'()*+! 
	...."#$  
	%&..... ."#$  
	Adopted by Reference Document 
	# of discretionary requirements 
	Registered Guide-Outfitter Hunt Record – December 2017 
	13 
	Guide-Outfitter Use Area Maps – updated July 2024 
	0 
	Transporter Activity Report – October 2012 
	16 
	Total: 
	29 
	(Words in  indicate language being added; words [CAPITALIZED AND BRACKETED] indicate language being deleted. Complete new sections are not in boldface or underlined.) 
	_____). 
	AS 08.54.600 
	AS 08.54.610 
	 AS 08.54.750 
	AS 08.54.600 AS 08.54.750 
	 (B) conducting activities set out under (f)(2) of this section. 
	(3) The contracting guide must maintain daily communication with the supervising guide personally and be readily available for communication at all times by telephone, radio, or satellite device; or 
	AS 08.54.600 
	AS 08.54.620 
	 AS 08.54.710 
	AS 08.54.600 AS 08.54.660 AS 08.54.760 
	AS 08.54.650 
	12/10-11/24 Meeting Minutes Excerpt for New Regulations Project 
	3. UVC Sharing 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Chairman Bloomquist said that there was some confusion on whether or not an agent of an RGO could put the clients of that RGO into the annual hunting permit drawing, thru ADF&G, using their Unique Verification Code (UVC). He said that there were some different interpretations of it over the years and that the division needed some clarification. Technically, he said, that UVC codes belong to the RGO and should not be shared with clients. He said that there had been cases in the past where a client would use 
	4. Public Comment 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Mr. Bay created a list of attendees that wanted to provide public comment. The board began public comment. 
	Jason Bunch 
	Jason Bunch, an RGO, began his testimony on the UVC code issue. He said that the original intent of the UVC code was to ensure an RGO was the person using the code and entering their clients in the drawing. That ensured that an RGO would have a contract with a client and that the RGO knew the people he was putting into the draw were the people he was communicating with. At that time, he said there were a lot of communication issues regarding booking agents applying clients into a draw on behalf of an RGO, b
	Dan Montgomery 
	Dan Montgomery, an MGO, said that he had a client who applied himself in the drawing and then sent him a guide-client contract. He said that the client put his guide license number as the UVC code, and it accepted the application. His understanding was that the 
	draw permit, if pulled, would be thrown out. He said that the board has issued permits for the last five years to people who were not signed up for the area for the hunt year. He said that the board should not be telling people that they can use the same UVC code if they are not signed up for the following year. He said that the board also let people sign up for areas after they had drawn permits. He said that it should not be allowed and that everybody should have to follow the same rules. Chairman Bloomqu
	Dick Rohrer 
	Dick Rohrer, an MGO, began testimony on the UVC code issue. He said that it originally came out of Kodiak, and was originally called a guide-client agreement, which the staff in Kodiak checked to make sure any nonresident applications for brown bear permits included proper registration. He cautioned any guides from giving out their UVC codes. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Rohrer for his testimony. 
	Derrick Campbell 
	Derrick Campbell, an RGO, said that one of the hot topics in all the meetings lately has been state land guide concessions. He said that something that is helpful and often overlooked for guides and clients is keeping the process for becoming a registered guide-outfitter as rigorous as possible. He said that there have been record numbers of RGO applicants recently and that while it is good for the board’s budget it is not good for the industry. He believes that the board’s budget would still be in a good p
	On the UVC code issue, he said that the board’s website says, “UVC’s are confidential and guides are encouraged to register their hunters in the drawings to protect themselves from 
	violating AS 08.54.720 Unlawful Acts.” He said that he has never shared his UVC codes but would like to have some assurance that he will not get in any trouble for doing so. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Campbell for his testimony. 
	Matt Snyder 
	Off Record: 10:40 a.m. 
	Matt Snyder, an MGO, began testimony on the UVC code issue. He said that he thinks nonresidents should be able to apply themselves into the drawing because it takes a lot of time to apply clients, especially when you have a large number of them. Chairman Bloomquist said that unfortunately Mr. Snyder was in an area where it pays to have more clients in the drawing, which requires a lot of foot work. With nothing left to discuss, the board thanked Mr. Snyder for his time. The board took a break. 
	New Regulation Project: 12 AAC 75.260(d) 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Chairman Bloomquist said that they needed to amend  because of the UVC code issue they discussed earlier. He suggested amending the second to last sentence in the regulation to read as the following: 
	Unique verification codes will be current until the day before the first day of the Alaska Department of Fish and Game drawing application period in the year the associated guide use area registration expires or is withdrawn or amended. 
	This would fix the UVC code issue they currently have with RGOs being able use a UVC code in their final year of registration without actually being registered in the unit the following year. The board agreed with the change. 
	Motion: 
	Move to initiate a regulations project regarding an amendment to  by approving the following language for public comment, unless substantive changes are made by the regulations specialist or Department of Law: 
	A contracting registered or master guide who is signing the hunt contract, and who intends to apply a client for a drawing hunt permit for a hunt conducted under regulations required under AS 16.05, shall obtain a unique verification code for each guide use area in which a unique verification code is required from the department before entering an application for the client. Unique verification codes will only be issued to registered or master guides who are registered in a guide use area located in the hun
	codes can only be utilized by the contracting registered or master guide who is applying clients for a drawing hunt permit.
	 (First: Boniek; Second: Nordlum). 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Buist - Yes 
	Flores - Yes 
	Boniek - Yes 
	Kunder - Yes 
	Bloomquist - Yes 
	Nordlum - Yes 
	Lorring - Absent 
	New Regulation Project: Repeal 12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A)/Amend 12 AAC 75.100(a)(1) 
	Brief Discussion: 
	Off Record: 3:36 p.m. 
	Chairman Bloomquist said that there might be a way around requiring the board to do in-person practical exams by changing the exam requirements written in regulation. He said that nothing in the board’s statutes or regulations states that the practical exam has to be in-person and that it can be a written exam. He asked Mr. Bunch, who was running the exams workgroup, if he had any ideas on the topic. Mr. Bunch said that the board has to first look at the board’s statutes, which requires the board to prepare
	He said that the workgroup’s suggestion is to repeal , the trophy judging of actual antlers and horns requirement, and instead replace it with a prerequisite requirement for an applicant to have an official measurer certification from SCI or Boone and Crockett under . The board took a break and would be getting a quick update from the APHA before moving forward with this discussion. 
	New Regulation Project: Repeal 12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A)/Amend 12 AAC 75.100(a)(1) - (continued) 
	Brief Discussion: 
	The board continued their regulations project discussion. After discussion, the board agreed to the prerequisite but added Pope and Young or the equivalent as additional options. They also decided to add two other prerequisites, which included adding requirements to pass ADF&G’s Hunter Education Course with a 90% or higher and certification as a Wilderness First Responder (WFR) or higher. Chairman Bloomquist said that the Hunter Education Course is a simple and quick online course that covers a lot of simpl
	Motion: 
	Move to initiate a regulations project regarding an amendment to  and a repeal to  by approving the following language for public 
	(First: Boniek; Second: Lorring). 
	comment, unless substantive changes are made by the regulations specialist or Department of Law: 
	12 AAC 75.100(a)(1) 
	12 AAC 75.110(a)(1)(A) 
	Recorded Votes: 
	Buist - Yes 
	Flores - Yes 
	Boniek - Yes 
	Kunder - Yes 
	Bloomquist - Yes 
	Nordlum - Yes 
	   Name 
	Case Number 
	Start of Probation 
	End of Probation 
	   Preston Cavner 
	2021-000623-PRB 
	07/02/2025 
	07/02/2030 
	   Gilbert Huntington 
	2022-000797 
	09/05/2023 
	09/05/2028 
	   Michael Vanstrom 
	2023-000199 
	12/06/2023 
	12/06/2028 
	   Zachary  Shrum 
	2023-000998-Prb 
	02/29/2024 
	02/28/2026 
	   Darwin Vander Esch 
	2024-000001-Prb 
	03/27/2024 
	03/27/2026 
	   Justin Shaffer 
	2024-000018-Prb 
	03/28/2025 
	03/28/2029 
	   Jeffrey Berg 
	2022-001145-Prb 
	03/27/2024 
	03/27/2027 
	   Peter Michaloski 
	2024-000359-PRB 
	08/13/2024 
	08/13/2026 
	   ALBERT FURNEY 
	2024-000067-PRB 
	11/14/2025 
	11/14/2028 
	   Daniel  Paull 
	2024-000068-PRB 
	11/14/2025 
	11/14/2028 
	   Clayton Roberts 
	2024-001140-Prb 
	02/19/2025 
	02/21/2026 
	   Shawn Stone 
	2024-000900-Prb 
	02/19/2025 
	02/19/2026 
	   Joseph Romano 
	2025-000126-Prb 
	07/18/2025 
	07/18/2027 
	   Michael  Meekin 
	2025-000621-Prb 
	10/01/2025 
	10/01/2027 
	   Shay Rosser 
	2025-000403-Prb 
	12/10/2025 
	12/10/2027 
	   Judah Pernell 
	2025-000235-Prb 
	12/10/2025 
	12/10/2028 
	   Arno Krumm 
	2025-000039-Prb 
	12/10/2025 
	12/10/2028 
	   Nicolas Pierskalla 
	2025-000255-Prb 
	07/18/2025 
	07/18/2026 
	   Gabe King 
	2025-001048-Prb 
	12/10/2025 
	12/10/2027 
	   Peter Barela 
	2025-001034-Prb 
	12/10/2025 
	12/10/2028 
	   Hal La Pointe 
	2024-001025-Prb 
	02/19/2025 
	02/19/2026 
	   Jarod Kloostra 
	2024-001083-Prb 
	02/19/2025 
	02/19/2026 
	The following is a complete list of individuals on probation for this Board that are not in compliance with their Board agreements. 
	   Name 
	Case Number 
	Start of Probation 
	End of Probation 
	Disposition Date 
	   Joel  Brewer 
	2023-000980-Prb 
	02/29/2024 
	02/28/2026 
	01/09/2026 
	   Daniel  Graham 
	2023-001192-Prb 
	03/27/2024 
	03/27/2027 
	01/09/2026 
	   Paul Ritz 
	2023-001103-Prb 
	02/19/2025 
	02/19/2026 
	01/09/2026 
	   Gary King, Jr 
	2021-000627-Prb 
	02/29/2024 
	02/28/2027 
	01/12/2026 
	   Douglas ZWEIFEL 
	2021-001082-PRB 
	07/18/2024 
	07/18/2026 
	01/12/2026 
	   Craig HILL 
	2022-000222-Prb 
	12/16/2025 
	12/16/2030 
	01/12/2026 
	   Rafe Oliphant 
	2024-000917-Prb 
	02/19/2025 
	02/21/2026 
	01/20/2026 
	   Ryan Schliesser 
	2025-000311-Prb 
	07/18/2025 
	07/18/2027 
	01/20/2026 
	   Tracy  Trudell 
	2024-000212-Prb 
	10/01/2025 
	10/01/2028 
	01/20/2026 
	   Alaska Big Game Professionals, LLC 
	2024-000212-Prb 
	10/01/2025 
	10/01/2028 
	01/20/2026 
	   Jeffrey Peterson 
	2025-000676-Prb 
	10/01/2025 
	10/01/2027 
	01/20/2026 
	   Ricko DeWilde 
	2025-000108-Prb 
	10/01/2025 
	10/01/2028 
	01/20/2026 
	The following is a complete list of individuals on probation for this Board that are suspended. 
	   Name 
	Case Number 
	Start of Probation 
	End of Probation 
	Disposition Date 
	The following is a complete list of individuals on Non-Disciplinary Consent Agreements (Monitoring Status) for this Board. All individuals are in compliance with their agreements. 
	   Name 
	Case Number 
	Start of Probation 
	End of Probation 
	Disposition Date 
	   Name 
	Case Number 
	Start of Probation 
	End of Probation 
	   Yote Robertson 
	2024-000934-PRB 
	12/11/2024 
	12/11/2025 
	   Fredrick O'Hearn 
	2024-001102-PRB 
	12/11/2024 
	12/11/2025 
	   John Walker 
	2020-001047 
	09/03/2021 
	09/03/2026 
	The following were released after probation completion. 
	Board Requests: 
	GRAHAM, Daniel; 2023-001192-Prb; Request for VSOL 
	END OF REPORT 
	DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
	550 West Seventh Avenue, Suite 1500 
	DATE: 
	January 27, 2026 
	TO: 
	Big Game Commercial Services Board 
	THRU: 
	Erika Prieksat, Chief Investigator
	nvestig 
	FROM: 
	Lee Strout, Investigator
	RE: 
	Investigative Report for the January 28, 2026 Meeting 
	The following information was compiled as an investigative report to the Board for the period of December 05, 2025 thru January 27, 2026; this report includes cases, complaints, and intake matters handled since the last report. 
	Matters opened by the Paralegals in Anchorage and Juneau, regarding continuing education audits and license action resulting from those matters are covered in this report. 
	OPEN - 65 
	Case Number 
	Violation Type 
	Case Status 
	Status Date 
	2026-000038 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Complaint 
	01/13/2026 
	2025-001114 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Investigation 
	12/30/2025 
	ASSISTANT GUIDE 
	2025-000685 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Complaint 
	07/24/2025 
	2025-001025 
	Probation violation 
	Complaint 
	10/30/2025 
	2025-001215 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Complaint 
	12/22/2025 
	2024-000145 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	CLASS A ASSISTANT GUIDE 
	2025-001107 Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation Investigation 12/31/2025 2024-000970 Criminal action - no conviction Criminal Case Pending 
	2020-000135 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Complaint 
	03/04/2020 
	2023-000977 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Complaint 
	10/09/2023 
	2023-000978 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Complaint 
	10/17/2023 
	2024-000340 
	Violation of License Regulation 
	Complaint 
	05/13/2024 
	2025-000723 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Complaint 
	08/18/2025 
	2025-000838 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Complaint 
	01/26/2026 
	2025-000945 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Complaint 
	10/01/2025 
	2025-001183 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Complaint 
	12/16/2025 
	2022-000615 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Investigation 
	07/30/2024 
	2023-000008 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Investigation 
	04/03/2024 
	2025-001032 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Investigation 
	01/07/2026 
	2022-000100 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2022-000577 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2023-000270 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Complaint 
	04/03/2023 
	2023-000900 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Complaint 
	08/21/2023 
	2024-000010 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Complaint 
	01/04/2024 
	2024-000795 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Complaint 
	08/29/2024 
	2024-000952 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Complaint 
	11/06/2024 
	2024-001048 
	Violation of License Regulation 
	Complaint 
	12/09/2024 
	2025-000925 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Complaint 
	09/24/2025 
	2025-000929 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Complaint 
	09/30/2025 
	2025-000938 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Complaint 
	09/29/2025 
	2025-001105 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Complaint 
	11/19/2025 
	2025-001113 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Complaint 
	11/20/2025 
	2025-001182 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Complaint 
	12/16/2025 
	2022-000244 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Investigation 
	06/09/2025 
	2022-000686 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Investigation 
	07/23/2025 
	2023-000918 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Investigation 
	02/04/2025 
	2023-000974 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Investigation 
	07/23/2025 
	2023-000983 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Investigation 
	07/23/2025 
	2023-001145 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Investigation 
	07/02/2024 
	2023-001197 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Investigation 
	07/02/2024 
	2024-000162 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Investigation 
	07/23/2025 
	2024-000469 
	Fraud or misrepresentation 
	Investigation 
	07/23/2025 
	2024-000695 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Investigation 
	08/19/2025 
	2024-000803 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Investigation 
	07/23/2025 
	2024-000854 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Investigation 
	08/20/2025 
	2024-001018 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Investigation 
	01/14/2026 
	2025-000383 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Investigation 
	05/21/2025 
	2025-000617 
	Criminal action - conviction 
	Investigation 
	11/06/2025 
	2025-000856 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Investigation 
	01/13/2026 
	2025-001006 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Investigation 
	01/14/2026 
	2021-000624 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2022-000406 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2022-000407 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2023-000151 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2023-000158 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2023-001042 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2024-001009 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	2024-001010 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	TRANSPORTER 
	2023-001034 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Complaint 
	11/22/2023 
	2023-001048 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Complaint 
	10/18/2023 
	2023-001049 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Complaint 
	10/17/2023 
	2019-000483 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Investigation 
	04/06/2022 
	2019-000589 
	Falsified application 
	Investigation 
	04/06/2022 
	2023-000705 
	Violation of licensing regulation 
	Investigation 
	12/11/2024 
	2025-000573 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Criminal Case Pending 
	Case # 
	Violation Type 
	Case Status 
	Closed 
	Closure 
	ASSISTANT GUIDE 
	2026-000026 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/12/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000029 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/15/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000030 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/15/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000048 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/20/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2025-000875 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Complaint 
	12/10/2025 
	Review Complete 
	2024-001066 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Closed-Investigation 
	12/11/2025 
	License Action 
	2025-000235 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Closed-Investigation 
	12/12/2025 
	License Action 
	GUIDE-OUTFITTER 
	2025-001157 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	12/16/2025 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000017 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/15/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000020 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/16/2026 
	Review Complete 
	MASTER GUIDE-OUTFITTER 
	2026-000016 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/21/2026 
	Review Complete 
	REGISTERED GUIDE-OUTFITTER 
	2025-000949 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Closed-Intake 
	12/15/2025 
	Incomplete Complaint 
	2025-001216 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/15/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000027 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/15/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000028 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/13/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2026-000031 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Intake 
	01/15/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2024-001199 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Closed-Complaint 
	01/15/2026 
	No Action - No Violation 
	2026-000049 
	License Application Review/Referral 
	Closed-Complaint 
	01/26/2026 
	Review Complete 
	2025-000039 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Closed-Investigation 
	12/11/2025 
	License Action 
	2025-000403 
	Falsified application 
	Closed-Investigation 
	12/12/2025 
	License Action 
	2025-001034 
	Criminal action - no conviction 
	Closed-Investigation 
	12/11/2025 
	License Action 
	TRANSPORTER 
	2025-001064 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Closed-Intake 
	12/15/2025 
	Incomplete Complaint 
	2025-000721 
	Financial Scam 
	Closed-Complaint 
	12/10/2025 
	No Action - No Violation 
	2025-001037 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Closed-Complaint 
	12/10/2025 
	No Action - No Violation 
	2025-001048 
	Violation of Profession Statute or Regulation 
	Closed-Investigation 
	12/11/2025 
	License Action 
	END OF REPORT 




